
 

 

Please ask for Democratic Services: Telephone 01775 764693  

e-mail: demservices@sholland.gov.uk 

 

REVISED 
AGENDA 
 
 

 

Committee - GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
Date & Time - Thursday, 19 January 2023 at 4.00 pm 
 

Venue - Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding 

 
 

Membership of the Governance and Audit Committee: 
 
Councillors: F Biggadike, H J W Bingham (Vice-Chairman), C J T H Brewis, T A Carter 
(Chairman), M Hasan, M D Seymour and S C Walsh 
 
Quorum 3. 

 
 

 Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn off mobile telephones  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Democratic Services 
Council Offices, Priory Road 
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE 
 
Date:  18 January 2023 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



AGENDA 
PLEASE NOTE TIMINGS 
ARE APPROXIMATE 
 
TIME 
 1.  Apologies for absence. 

  
 

 2.  Declaration of Interests -  
(Where a Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 
the Councillor must declare the interest to the meeting 
and leave the room without participating in any 
discussion or making a statement on the item, except 
where a Councillor is permitted to remain as a result of a 
grant of dispensation).  
 

 

 3.  Minutes -  
To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of 
the Governance and Audit Committee held on 17 
November 2022 (copy enclosed). 
 

(Pages 5 - 
20) 

 4.  Actions -  
An update on actions which arose at the 17 November 
2022 Governance and Audit Committee meeting, 
including the tracking of previous outstanding actions 
(enclosed). 
 

(Pages 21 
- 26) 

 5.  Q3 Risk Report 22/23 -  
To provide an update on the Council’s strategic risks for 
the period 1st October 2022 to 31st December 2022 
(report of the Assistant Director – Governance enclosed). 
 

(Pages 27 
- 44) 

 6.  Draft Treasury Management Policy and Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy Statement and Annual Investment 
Strategy 2023/24 -  
To provide pre-decision scrutiny to the strategy being 
proposed (report of the Deputy Chief Executive 
(Corporate Development) & S151). 
 

(Pages 45 
- 84) 

 7.  Impact of Financial Market Fluctuations on the Council's 
Financial position -  
At its meeting on 17 November 2022, Members 
requested a short Treasury verbal update come forward 
to the 19 January 2023 meeting which summarised the 
recent changes encountered within the financial markets 
and the subsequent effects on the Council’s situation.  
The Interim Treasury and Investment Manager (PSPSL) 
will be in attendance to provide the Committee with a 
verbal update on the situation. 
 
 

 

 8.  Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme -  (Pages 85 

Page 2



To set out the Work Programme of the Governance and 
Audit Committee (report of the Assistant Director – 
Finance enclosed). 
 

- 92) 

 9.  Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent. 
-  
 
 
NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by 

reason of special circumstances, which 
shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) 
should be considered as a matter of 
urgency. 

 

 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



- 28 - 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE held in 
Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Thursday, 17 November 
2022 at 4.00 pm. 
 

PRESENT 

  
T A Carter (Chairman) 

H J W Bingham (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 

F Biggadike 
C J T H Brewis 
 

M Hasan 
S C Walsh 
 

  
 

 

In Attendance: The Assistant Director – Finance, the Business Intelligence and 
Change Manager, Assistant Director - Finance, Interim Treasury Manager and 
Contracts and Procurement Officer, Acting Principal Assurance Lincolnshire, the 
Portfolio Holder for Finance, Commercialisation and Partnerships and the Democratic 
Services Officer. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from the Interim Assistant Director – 
Governance. 
 
 
 Action By 

21. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   

  

 At agenda item 5, Councillor Biggadike declared an interest that 
he was a private landlord and remained in the meeting during the 
discussion.  

 

   

22. MINUTES   

  

  
AGREED: 
 
That the minutes of the following meetings be signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record: 
 

a) Governance and Audit Committee held on 28 July 2022; 
and 

 
b) Governance and Audit Committee held on 22 September 2022.  

 

   

23. ACTIONS   

  

 Updated responses to Actions which arose at the 22 September 
2022 Governance and Audit Committee meeting were presented 
to the Committee.  
 

Members considered the responses and made the following 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3.



- 29 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
17 November 2022 

 

 

comments: 
 

• Regarding completed action 9b, members stated that the 
response had not satisfactorily answered the question and 
a fuller response be requested; and 

• Ongoing actions to be succinctly referenced in future 
iterations. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the Actions from the Governance and Audit Committee 
meeting held on 22 September 2022 be noted. 
  

   

24. Q2 RISK REPORT 2022/2023   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Assistant Director – 
Corporate to provide an update on the Council’s strategic risks for 
the period 1 July 2022 to 30 September 2022. 
 

The Senior Change and Performance Business Partner provided 
the Committee with the following updates: 
 

• The report included risks which related to the South and 
East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership (S&ELCP) at 
Appendix B. This element had been included at the request 
of the Governance and Audit Committee. 

 

• Whilst there had not been any changes to risk scores in the 
current iteration, the following updates to ICT controls and 
mitigations had taken place: 

 
In respect of risk relating to a cyber incident: 

o PSPS had been successful in its application for a 
grant from the Department for Levelling-Up to 
improve the security position of the three 
partnership councils; 

o the maximum grant of £175,000 had been secured; 
o an action plan would be developed to improve cyber 

security and infrastructure; and 
o the action plan needed to adhere to caveats 

stipulated by the award. 
 

In respect of risk relating to ICT infrastructure: 
o the risk had been moved onto the Strategic Risk 

Register; 
o the risk scoring had not changed; an increased risk 

had been considered after the outage in September 

 

Page 6



- 30 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
17 November 2022 

 

 

2022, and whilst the risk had been elevated at the 
time of incident, the likelihood of reoccurrence in the 
future had not changed; and 

o a Major Incident review had been conducted and 
was in the process of being shared with the ICT 
Strategy Board, Senior Leadership Team and 
Portfolio Holder. The review considered resiliency 
options that may be used to lower the risk scoring in 
the future. 

 
 

Members considered the report and made the following 
comments: 
 

• The ‘retention of staff’ risk had been duplicated. 
 

• Members discussed the risks that related to both economic 
downturn and economic hardship (on agenda pages 47 
and 54 respectively): 

o members referred to ‘economic downturn’ risk and 
noted that since the report was produced, a number 
of companies in the district had announced 
closures/ceased trading. Potential redundancies 
would have a significant impact on the local 
economy. The Committee strongly determined the 
risk rating of 3 to be too low and requested that this 
opinion be communicated to relevant officers;  

o members also referred to the ‘economic hardship’ 
risk and requested further details regarding the 
‘working with landlords’ mitigation; and 

o members queried the impact that economic 
hardship would have on the partnership lottery. 

The Senior Change and Performance Business Partner 
responded that:  

▪ all of the issues that related to economic 
downturn and economic hardship would be 
raised with Growth Directors;  

▪ The economic downturn risk would be 
reviewed; and  

▪ The economic hardship risk would be 
developed. 

 

• Members welcomed the chart on page 41 of the agenda 
which outlined how risks were graded and managed. 

 

• Members requested that Appendix A and Appendix B be 
clearly separated in future iterations. 
 

Page 7



- 31 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
17 November 2022 

 

 

• Members referred to the risk relating to the ‘failure to 
deliver new homes programme’ and questioned whether 
the delivery pace of new homes was too quick/frontloaded, 
potentially resulting in a future economic slowdown when 
projects were completed. Members requested a risk be 
included for this aspect of delivery. 

o The Senior Change and Performance Business 
Partner would look into this and report back to the 
Committee. 

 

• Members referred to the risk relating to ‘failure to meet 
statutory requirements regarding general fund assets’ and 
noted that the Business Support Officer narrative was 
incomplete.  Members queried whether the intention had 
been for the Business Support Officer role to remain 
temporary as this position was likely to be required going 
forward. 

o Regarding the incomplete narrative, the Senior 
Change and Performance Business Partner stated 
that the current report was produced during a 
transition period. Formatting issues would be 
rectified for Q3 when the report would be generated 
wholly through the Pentana system.  

o The Senior Change and Performance Business 
Partner would investigate the terms of the Business 
Support Officer role and report back to the 
Committee. 

 
 

• Members referred to the risk score of 3 for ‘internal 
communications’ and questioned whether this was realistic. 
The Q1 Performance Report 2022/23 presented at the 19 
October 2022 Performance Monitoring Panel meeting 
stated the ‘percentage of workforce who felt informed 
about the Partnership and what decisions it was making’ 
was 44.   
 

 
AGREED: 
 
That following consideration of the covering report and Appendix 
A, which detailed the latest assessment of the Council’s strategic 
risks, the Q2 Risk Report 2022/23 be noted.  

   

25. MID TERM TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE 2022/23   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Interim Treasury and 
Investments Manager (PSPSL) which provided an update of the 

 

Page 8



- 32 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
17 November 2022 

 

 

treasury management position of the Council as at 30 September 
2022. 
 

The Interim Treasury and Investments Manager (PSPSL) 
introduced the report which had been prepared in compliance with 
the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA) code of practice on Treasury Management. 
 
The requirement of the code was the production of: 

• a Treasury Management Policy Statement;  

• Treasury Management Practices;  

• a Treasury Management Strategy Statement which 
included the Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum 
Revenue Provision Policy; 

• a Mid-Year report which was being presented at the 
current meeting, and an annual report at the end of the 
financial year. 

 
Appendix A included an update on the following areas: 

• Capital Strategy and Treasury Management background 
information; 

• An introduction to the Mid Term report; 

• Economics and Interest Rates – key points from the 
commentary provided by Link Asset Services on 7 October 
2022 stated that: 

o higher energy prices were predicted to have a 
persistent downward effect on the economy;  

o there had been double digit inflation;  
o interest rates had increased seven times – the Bank 

of England base rate had risen to 3% with an 
expectation that rates would peak at 5%.  Since the 
report was written Link Asset Services had 
forecasted a reduced peak of 4.5%.  

• Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual 
Investment Strategy Update; 

• The Council’s Capital position (Prudential Indicators); 
Appendix A1 detailed a full breakdown of the latest 
approved capital expenditure programme and actual 
expenditure to date; 

• Borrowing;  

• Debt Rescheduling; 

• Compliance with Treasury and Prudential Indicators; 

• Annual Investment Strategy; and 

• Changes in Risk Appetite, which had remained unchanged. 
 
 
Members considered the report and made the following 

Page 9



- 33 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
17 November 2022 

 

 

comments: 
 

• Members referred to Housing Revenue Account self-
financing settlement and called for central government to 
cancel the debt.  

 

• Members queried the speed at which deposits could be 
withdrawn should a financial institution collapse.  

o The Interim Treasury and Investment Manager 
(PSPSL) responded that: 

▪ all investments were timed deposits which 
varied from instant access through to a fixed 
12-month term;  

▪ the longer-term deposits could possibly be 
withdrawn early with agreement of the 
borrower but penalties may be incurred;  

▪ the Treasury Strategy, agreed by members at 
Council, outlined the agreed investment 
criteria;  

▪ investment advice was taken from external 
treasury advisors who monitored rates and 
credit ratings: and 

▪ a cautionary approach was taken with 
deposits restricted to AA and AAA rated 
companies. 

 

• Members noted that capital expenditure and forecasted 
outturn reflected a dramatic change to the original 
approved programme.  Concern was expressed if the 
Capital Programme expenditure was exceeded. 

 

• Members acknowledged the lack of opportunities for the 
rescheduling of debt and asked whether this area was 
regularly reviewed. 

o The Assistant Director – Finance responded that 
this area was regularly discussed with the Interim 
Treasury and Investments Manager (PSPSL) and 
any rescheduling decisions would involve the 
consideration of prevailing interest rates and 
financial modelling.  

 

• Members asked why the Street Cleansing forecast outturn 
had increased from a budget of £35,000 to £109,000. 

o The Assistant Director – Finance confirmed that 
£109,000 had related to the purchase of four 7.5 
tonne trucks. Only one vehicle should have been 
coded to the Street Cleansing budget however there 
had been an error which had subsequently been 

Page 10



- 34 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
17 November 2022 

 

 

corrected. Of the remaining three trucks, one was 
attributed to Environmental Services Operational 
and two to South Holland Maintenance.  
 

AGREED: 
 

a) That following consideration by the Governance and Audit 
Committee of the report and the treasury activity as detailed in 
Appendix A, the Mid Term Treasury Management update be 
noted; and 

 
b) That the comments of the Governance and Audit 

Committee be noted for consideration by Council at their 
meeting on 18 January 2023.  

   

26. PROPOSED AMENDMENTS OF THE COUNCIL'S CONTRACT 
 PROCEDURE RULES AND FINANCIAL PROCEDURE RULES  

 

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Assistant Director for 
Finance and Deputy S151 Officer, and the Interim Assistant 
Director for Governance and Monitoring Officer, to introduce a 
new updated version of the Contract Procedure Rules and an 
amendment to the Financial Procedure Rules. 
 

The Head of Procurement and Contracts introduced the report by 
referring to the amendments which applied to South Holland 
District Council, and outlined in Appendix 1A as follows:   

  

• the single change to the exemption clauses were outlined 
at point 3.3.9 of the report. The proposed change allowed 
for a reasonable exemption to assist with the development 
of housing, where this was considered appropriate; and 

• revised thresholds were outlined at point 9 of the report. 
 
The Head of Procurement and Contracts presented the following 
case study which demonstrated how the exemption stated at point 
3.3.9 of Appendix 1A could be utilised: 
 

“The Council could pursue the purchase of housing through a 
‘package deal’ which would incorporate planning consent, land 
purchase and build. Initially, a third party obtained the planning 
consent, secured the legal interest in the land, and secured a 
work contractor to build for a fixed price. On the date that 
planning consent was granted, the Council would enter into a 
simultaneous agreement to purchase the land and enter into a 
Joint Contracts Tribunal (JCT) contract with the works 
contractor at an agreed price. Should a package deal be 
pursued, the benefits to the Council included: 

 

Page 11



- 35 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
17 November 2022 

 

 

• engagement in the project from an early stage; and 

• the undertaking of a quality and value-for-money 
assessment prior to involvement. 

The inclusion of the exemption clause enabled different 
housing delivery routes to be pursued/explored by the Council. 
If the authority were to pursue a package deal, formal approval 
for each specific scheme would always be required from either 
the Executive or the Council”. 

 
Members considered the report and made the following 
comments: 
 

• Members asked how Cabinet members obtained specialist 
knowledge when making such decisions. 

o The Assistant Director – Finance stated that the 
exemption resulted from legal advice which had 
been sought for a new type of housing delivery 
option.  External advisers provided technical advice 
where this was not available within the skillset of 
officers. 

 

• Members queried the process that would be followed for 
the purchasing of properties should the proposed 
exemption not have been brought forward as an 
amendment. 

o The Head of Procurement and Contracts stated that 
the purchase of a housing package would not be 
possible, and the Council would need to source land 
in the traditional way, or procure completed 
properties direct from developers. The exemption 
enabled Council involvement from commencement 
of a scheme and therefore control over the quality of 
the build. 

o The Assistant Director – Finance stated that 
whereas previously a builder may have approached 
the council directly, the exemption enabled a builder 
to work with a partner, such as a Housing 
Association, to put forward a package deal to the 
Council. 

 

• Members asked whether the Council had considered 
utilising framework agreements, such as those provided by 
SCAPE.  

o The Head of Procurement and Contracts confirmed 
that the options to use frameworks had not changed 
and would be utilised where this was the best 
option.  

.  

Page 12



- 36 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
17 November 2022 

 

 

• Members welcomed the changes which offered new 
delivery opportunities. Nonetheless, it was requested that 
external advice be taken with projects to mitigate against 
issues that national companies had faced. 

 

• Members asked for clarification of point 4.2.2 of the report 
regarding the disposal of land - did this apply solely to land, 
or to both land and property? 

o The Head of Procurement and Contracts confirmed 
this applied to both land and property  

 

• Members referred to point 5.2 which listed records to be 
kept for tendered contracts of between £40,0000 and 
£85,000 in value and asked why records were not kept for 
all values. Additionally, point 5.3 stated that records kept 
for contracts up to £40,000 ‘should be proportionate to the 
value of the contract’ however it was not clear how 
proportionality was assessed, and the approach was 
subjective. 

o The Head of Procurement and Contracts stated that 
the vagueness relating to point 5.3 would be 
removed. 

 

• Members asked who would approve, and therefore be 
accountable for, a Capital Programme spend of 
£209,000.00  

o The Assistant Director – Finance responded: 
▪ that approval would depend on the nature of 

the programme. Spend that related to several 
projects over various schemes of work, would 
be approved on a case-by-case basis;  

▪ a decision could be made by a Portfolio 
Holder or an officer with delegated powers; 

▪ any ‘Key Decision’ spend would be subject to 
the governance process; and 

▪ whilst the Procurement and Contracts team 
assisted with the procurement process, the 
responsibility of the design and project 
management of the scheme would remain 
with the client officer. 

o The Head of Procurement and Contracts stated that 
spend on a single project would involve an 
assessment of the case with the client officer which 
included: 

▪ whether the use of a framework was 
applicable; 

▪ which local contractors could potentially be 
utilised; and 

Page 13



- 37 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
17 November 2022 

 

 

▪ whether a tender process was necessary. 
.  

• Members referred to the £40,001 to £85,000 threshold 
stated at point 9 of the report and requested the addition 
that at least three quotations be received.  

o The Assistant Director – Finance stated that: 
▪ a minimum requirement had not been 

stipulated since a failure to achieve a stated 
number of quotations would delay 
progression of the project; 

▪ the Procurement Team applied an extra layer 
of scrutiny to ensure that appropriate 
quotations were received; and 

▪ the value-for-money assessment was wider 
than cost alone and also considered: quality; 
employment opportunities such as 
apprentices; and social values. 

• Members considered the response but were not 
comfortable with the absence of a minimum quotation 
requirement and requested that at least two quotations be 
required. An exception could be considered where a 
single/limited supplier(s) existed, in which case the 
exemption process could be followed. 

o The Assistant Director - Finance and Head of 
Procurement and Contracts would consider the 
practicalities and feasibilities of the request. The 
request would also be raised when the item was 
scrutinised by Governance and Audit committees 
across the partnership. 

 

• Members referred to the e-Tendering process as noted at 
point 5.2, and asked, for the benefit of all, whether 
responses to individual queries were circulated to all 
interested parties. 

o The Head of Procurement and Contracts confirmed 
that this was the case and full transparency was 
applied. 

 

• Members asked whether the tender form included a 
declaration of a close relationship with a Councillor/officer. 

o The Head of Procurement and Contracts would 
ensure that this was included for transparency. 

 

• Members asked whether the policy change needed to be 
scrutinised by the Policy Development Panel?  

o The Assistant Director – Finance responded that 
Contract Procedure Rules were part of the 
constitution and therefore the report process of 

Page 14



- 38 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
17 November 2022 

 

 

Governance and Audit, Cabinet and Council had 
been followed. This process would be checked with 
the Monitoring Officer. 

 

• Members queried whether the exemption stated at point 
3.3.3 could lead to unscrutinised extension of contracts/a 
monopoly situation. 

o The Head of Procurement and Contracts stated that 
various levels of scrutiny were employed to ensure 
that this would not occur. 

 

• Members referred to Appendix 2 which outlined the 
proposed amended delegations to officers in relation to 
contracts, and asked for clarification of the changes. 

o The Head of Procurement and Contracts responded 
that the sole change for South Holland District 
Council related to the inclusion of split limits for the 
signing of contracts under seal. This was already 
stated in the Constitution and had been included in 
the procedure rules for transparency. 

 

• Members thanked officers for the report and pre-briefing 
presentation which had facilitated their understanding of 
the proposed changes. It was requested that future 
proposed changes to existing procedures be highlighted 
within any report coming forward to committees for 
consideration.  

 
AGREED: 
 

a) That following consideration of the draft revised 
Contract Procedure Rules at Appendix 1 to the report, 
the draft proposals be noted; 

  
b) That the suggestion that the Monitoring Officer be 

authorised to make the necessary changes to update 
the Council’s Constitution, accordingly, including 
delegation to amend where inconsistencies arise, 
noting that the CPR will take primacy, be noted by the 
Governance and Audit Committee;  

 

c) That the recommendation for Council to approve the 
revised financial procedure rule for Banking 
arrangement and cheques as detailed in Paragraph 
1.12 of the report be noted by the Governance and 
Audit Committee; and 

 

d) That the comments of the Governance and Audit 

Page 15



- 39 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
17 November 2022 

 

 

Committee which related to points 5.3 and 9 of 
Appendix 1A, be noted.   

   

27. PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY 
 2022/2023  

 

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 
Audit to examine the progress made between 13 September 2022 
and 7 November 2022 in relation to the completion of the Internal 
Audit Plan for 2022/2023 including an update on Internal Audit 
Recommendations. 
 

Assurance Lincolnshire had replaced TIAA as South Holland 
District Council’ internal auditors from October 2022. The Acting 
Principal, Assurance Lincolnshire introduced the report to the 
Committee which included an update on the following points: 
 

• key messages: two audits had been carried out; 41% of the 
annual plan had been completed; 

• assurances: two reviews had been completed; 

• work in progress: five audits were in progress; three of 
which executed by TIAA would come forward to the 
Committee through Assurance Lincolnshire. 

• matters of interest to Audit Committee members; 

• audit plan progress to date; 

• changes to the original plan; 

• status of audit recommendations;  
 
 
Members considered the report and made the following 
comments: 
 

• Members referred to the Housing Benefit cases examined 
and asked in overall percentage terms, what size the 62 
sample cases had represented.   

o The Acting Principal, Assurance Lincolnshire stated 
that the work was completed for external audit who 
decided the sample size to be audited and selected 
the sample. Should errors become apparent, a 
larger sample size may be investigated. 

 

• Members requested the prioritisation of audits on both 
Leisure provision and the South Holland Centre before the 
end of the current administration. Should the planned 
Leisure audit be delayed, it would need to be prioritised for 
the beginning of the next audit cycle. 

o The Assistant Director – Finance had enquired 
whether Assurance Lincolnshire could 

 

Page 16



- 40 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
17 November 2022 

 

 

accommodate the deferred Leisure audit before the 
end of the municipal year. The matter would be 
pursued with the Internal Audit Manager to ascertain 
whether this would be possible. 

 

• Members referred to page 10 of Appendix A and sought 
clarification of ‘fieldwork underway’ for the Car Parks and 
Markets audit.  

o The Assistant Director – Finance responded that the 
report was due to be submitted imminently by 
T.I.A.A. and should come forward to the 19 January 
2023 Governance and Audit Committee meeting.  

 

• The Performance on Key Indicators for ‘percentage of 
recommendations agreed’ on page 7 of the report was set 
at 100%. Had Assurance Lincolnshire expected the target 
to be challenged by services? 

o The Acting Principal, Assurance Lincolnshire stated 
the target was standard and it was rare that 
recommendations were not agreed. 

 

• Members noted the rescheduled SH2202 Human 
Resources audit on page 16 of the report and reiterated 
that requested extensions required the responsible officer 
to seek approval by the Governance and Audit Committee. 

 

• Members commented on the content and format of the 
report: 

o Members requested that the Progress Report on 
Internal Audit Activity and the update on Internal 
Audit Recommendations come forward to the 
Committee as separate reports; 

o in general, contextual narratives were required 
throughout the report to enable the Committee to 
understand the current position and track progress;  

o detailed information was required for the Assurance 
review narratives: recommendations and action to 
be taken needed to be specified;    

o the Committee would decide at a future meeting 
whether any further delay in the delivery of 
Recommendation 1 of the Private Sector Housing 
DFGs required an update to be provided by 
responsible officers/Northgate team. 

o members requested feedback on the 
handover/transition between T.I.A.A. and Assurance 
Lincolnshire; 

▪ The Assistant Director – Finance 
acknowledged the short transition period 

Page 17



- 41 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
17 November 2022 

 

 

leading up the first report from the new 
internal auditors however feedback would 
enhance future iterations. A change of 
provider at the start of a financial year would 
have been preferred. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the information detailed within the report be noted.  

   

28. GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT WORK PROGRAMME   

  

 Consideration was given to the report of the Assistant Director – 
Finance which set out the Work Programme of the Governance 
and Audit Committee. 
 

The Democratic Services Officer introduced the report and 
highlighted the following areas: 
 
Appendix A included known agenda items that had been included 
in the schedule for the forthcoming year which included the 
following update: 

• Whilst Ernst Young (E.Y.) were on track to deliver the 
planned Annual Results Report in January 2023, 
procedurally the Annual Audit Letter would come forward to 
the following scheduled Governance and Audit Committee 
meeting. This item had therefore been moved to come 
forward to the 16 March 2023 meeting. 

 

• Appendix B outlined the Committee’s training log.  
 

• The Assistant Director – Finance confirmed that KPMG 
had been approved as external auditors for the three 
partnership authorities with effect from the 2023/2024 
financial year.  
 

Members considered the report and made the following 
comments: 
 

• Members requested a short Treasury verbal update come 
forward to the 19 January 2023 meeting which summarised 
the recent changes encountered within the financial 
markets and the subsequent effects on the Council’s 
situation. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the report and content of the Work Programme be noted.  

 

Page 18



- 42 - 
 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE - 
17 November 2022 

 

 

   

29. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
 URGENT.  

 

  

 There were none.   

   

 
 
 
(The meeting ended at 5.41 pm) 
 
(End of minutes) 
 
 
 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 ACTIONS  

 = completed, * = in hand, x = outstanding    1 
 

 
 

 ACTIONS FROM THE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT 
MEETING HELD ON 17 NOVEMBER 2022 

 

 

MINUTE
NO. 

 ITEM RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER 

24. 
22/23 

 Q2 RISK REPORT  

 
 
✓ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
✓ 
 
 
 
 
✓ 
 

 
 
(a)(i) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(a)(ii) 
 
 
 
 
(a)(iii) 
 

Members discussed the risks that related to both economic 
downturn and economic hardship: 
Members referred to ‘economic downturn’ risk and noted that 
since the report was produced, a number of companies in the 
district had announced closures/ceased trading. Potential 
redundancies would have a significant impact on the local 
economy. The Committee strongly determined the risk rating of 3 
to be too low and requested that this opinion be communicated to 
relevant officers.   
UPDATE: The risk around economic downturn has been reviewed 
with the Economic growth Director and team, risk score has been 
amended to reflect current economic climate 
 
Members also referred to the ‘economic hardship’ risk and 
requested further details regarding the ‘working with landlords’ 
mitigation.  
UPDATE: Further mitigation detail has been added to register 

 
Members queried the impact that economic hardship would have 
on the partnership lottery. 
UPDATE:  Risk has been raised with Assistant Director of 
Community and Wellbeing, there is no direct impact at this point 
as this is an optional scheme 
 

Corey Gooch 

✓ (b) 
 
 

Members requested that Appendix A and Appendix B be clearly 
separated in future iterations. 
UPDATE:  Noted. These will be clearly separated in future 
iterations. 
 

Corey Gooch 

✓ (c) Members referred to the risk relating to the ‘failure to deliver new 
homes programme’ and questioned whether the delivery pace of 
new homes was too quick/frontloaded, potentially resulting in a 
future economic slowdown when projects were completed. 
Members requested a risk be included for this aspect of delivery. 
UPDATE:  Risk has been reviewed with Growth team, whilst there 
is no risk to over delivery of housing by the authority, there will 
always be a need to consider the wider need to accommodate 
population growth in an area 
 

Corey Gooch 

Page 21

Agenda Item 4.



 

 ACTIONS  

 = completed, * = in hand, x = outstanding    2 
 

✓ 
 
 
 
 
 
* 
 

(d)(i) 
 
 
 
 
 
(d)(ii) 

Members referred to the risk relating to ‘failure to meet statutory 
requirements regarding general fund assets’ and noted that the 
Business Support Officer narrative was incomplete. 
UPDATE: Formatting issues would be rectified for Q3 when the 
report would be generated wholly through the Pentana system. 
 
Members queried whether the intention had been for the Business 
Support Officer role to remain temporary as this position was likely 
to be required going forward. 
UPDATE:  Post is in place at present, awaiting confirmation as there 
is some further recruitment activity taking place within the team 
 

Corey Gooch 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

✓ (e) Members referred to the risk score of 3 for ‘internal 
communications’ and questioned this was realistic. The Q1 
Performance Report 2022/23 presented at the 19 October 2022 
Performance Monitoring Panel meeting stated the ‘percentage of 
workforce who felt informed about the Partnership and what 
decisions it was making’ was 44.   
UPDATE:  The risk will be reflected to match the recent 
performance indicators. 
 

Corey Gooch 

    

26. 
22/23 

 PROPOSED AMENDMENTS OF THE COUNCIL’S CONTRACT 
PROCEDURE RULES AND FINANCIAL PROCEDURE RULES 
 

 

✓ (a) Members requested that external advice be taken with projects to 
mitigate against issues that national companies had faced. 
UPDATE:  This is noted. It is common for the Delivery team to 
source external advice to undertake feasibility checks such as 
Ground Conditions Reports etc. 
 

Martin Gibbs 
Sam Knowles 

✓ 
 
 
 
✓ 

(b)(i) 
 
 
 
(b)(ii) 

Members referred to point 5.2 which listed records to be kept for 
tendered contracts of between £40,0000 and £85,000 in value and 
asked why records were not kept for all values.  
 
Additionally, point 5.3 stated that records kept for contracts up to 
£40,000 ‘should be proportionate to the value of the contract’ 
however it was not clear how proportionality was assessed, and 
the approach was subjective. 
 
UPDATE:  I have made the necessary changes to this section and 
these were sent to Councillor Carter, who agreed she was happy 
with the change made. 
 

Martin Gibbs 
 

✓ (c) Members referred to the £40,001 to £85,000 threshold stated at 
point 9 of the report and requested that at least two quotations be 
required. An exception could be considered where a single/limited 
supplier(s) existed, in which case the exemption process could be 
followed. 

Martin Gibbs 
 

Page 22



 

 ACTIONS  

 = completed, * = in hand, x = outstanding    3 
 

UPDATE:  It was suggested that the £40,001 - £85,000 threshold 
has “a minimum of 2 quotations received” added. We have 
thought about this, and the proposal is to keep it as seeking 5 
quotations as the Procurement & Contracts service will be fully 
involved in this process and there can be the odd occasion where 
we have gone out and invited more than 5 to quote, and due to 
certain circumstances (like the current industry issues), we have 
only received 1 quote back. What would happen in this scenario is 
my team would then undertake necessary checks and meet with 
the client officers to ensure that the 1 quotation received is a good 
value for money offering (e.g., we don’t have to accept it and can 
go back out to market). Where there is time to do so, we would 
scour the market sourcing an additional quote.  The Chairman 
noted that she was happy with the above. 
 

✓ (d) Members asked whether the tender form included a declaration of 
a close relationship with a Councillor/officer. 
UPDATE:  We have a document that suppliers sign currently that 
covers off collusion and prevention of corruption – in addition to 
this, the following is included within our draft tender 
documentation which are notes for disqualification: 

• To inappropriately influence this Procurement Process;  

• To engage in direct or indirect bribery or canvassing by you 
or your appointed advisers in relation to this Procurement 
Process; or  

• To obtain information from any of the employees, agents, 
advisors, or Councillors of the Contracting Authority 
concerning this Procurement Process (other than as set out 
in these Tender Conditions) or from another potential 
supplier or another tender response.  

We also have a DOI form for evaluators to sign before evaluating 
tenders in case they have a conflict of interest with a supplier. I am 
satisfied that this covers the process of avoiding any conflicts of 
interest within the tendering process. 
 

Martin Gibbs 
 

✓ (e) Members asked whether the policy change needed to be 
scrutinised by the Policy Development Panel?  
 
MINUTED MEETING RESPONSE: The Assistant Director – Finance 
responded that Contract Procedure Rules were part of the 
constitution and therefore the report process of Governance and 
Audit, Cabinet and Council had been followed. This process would 
be checked with the Monitoring Officer. 
UPDATE: The Monitoring Officer confirmed the correct process had 
been followed. 
 

Sam Knowles 

    

27. 
22/23 

 PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY 2022/2023 
 

 

Page 23



 

 ACTIONS  

 = completed, * = in hand, x = outstanding    4 
 

✓ (a) Members requested the prioritisation of audits on both Leisure 
provision and the South Holland Centre before the end of the 
current administration. Should the planned Leisure audit be 
delayed, it would need to be prioritised for the beginning of the 
next audit cycle. 
MINUTED MEETING RESPONSE: The Assistant Director – Finance 
will discuss timings of the audits with the service and provide 
feedback to the Committee 
UPDATE:  a verbal update will be provided by the Assistant Director 
– Finance at the 19 January 2023 Governance and Audit 
Committee meeting. 
 

Sam Knowles 

✓ (b) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Members commented on the content and format of the report: 

• Members requested that the Progress Report on Internal 
Audit Activity and the update on Internal Audit 
Recommendations come forward to the Committee as 
separate reports; 

• Contextual narratives were required throughout the report 
to enable the Committee to understand the current 
position and track progress;  

• Detailed information was required for the Assurance 
review narratives: recommendations and action to be 
taken needed to be specified;   

UPDATE:  All formatting and content requests have been noted 
and will be incorporated into the next report. 
 

Matthew Waller & 
Amanda 
Stanislawski 
(Assurance 
Lincolnshire) 

✓ (c) Members requested feedback on the handover/transition between 
T.I.A.A. and Assurance Lincolnshire;  
UPDATE:  Response from Matthew Waller: I had a meeting with 
the previous Head of Audit to discuss the role and received some 
handover documents.  I also set up a meeting with the Chair and 
Vice Chair to introduce myself and discuss working practices.  
 

Matthew Waller 
(Assurance 
Lincolnshire) 

    

28. 
22/23 

 
 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT WORK PROGRAMME  

✓  Members requested a short Treasury verbal update come forward 
to the 19 January 2023 meeting which summarised the recent 
changes encountered within the financial markets and the 
subsequent effects on the Council’s situation. 
UPDATE:  Noted and actioned. Item included in the Governance 
and Audit Committee Work Programme to come forward at the 19 
January 2023 meeting. 
 

Sean Howsam 

 

  
 

OUTSTANDING ACTIONS FROM PREVIOUS  
GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
 

 

Page 24



 

 ACTIONS  

 = completed, * = in hand, x = outstanding    5 
 

18. 
22/23 

 PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY 2022/2023 
 

 

  22 SEPTEMBER 2022 
PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY 2022/2023 
 

 

* (a) Housing Needs, Allocations, Homelessness and Housing Register 
Recommendation 1 (Important) – Full assessments of homelessness 
applications be completed as soon as possible after the application 
is received.  Performance in this regard should be monitored to 
ensure that applications are assessed within a pre-determined 
timescale. 
UPDATE:  Samples and narrative were circulated by email to the 
Governance and Audit Committee on 1 December 2022.  A 
presentation, which will include details of emergency assessment 
cases not included in the samples, will be made to members in due 
course  
 

Gemma Johnson 

✓ (b) Housing Needs, Allocations, Homelessness and Housing Register 
Recommendation 2 (Important) – All decision letters to be uploaded 
to the relevant case. 
UPDATE:  Samples and narrative were circulated by email to the 
Governance and Audit Committee on 1 December 2022 
 

Gemma Johnson 

9. 
22/23 

 28 JULY 2022 
Q4 Risk Report 
 

 

* 
 

(a) 39. Members had not yet received the ‘external communications 
breakdown’ training 

40. UPDATE: Training will be covered in member training following the 
2023 District Elections. 

41.  

Shaun Gibbons 
Christine Morgan 

✓ (b) Concerns were raised regarding Change4Lincs and members asked 
how the service could be improved. Was the contract being 
managed? 
UPDATE:  From a monitoring perspective, monthly operational 
meetings are conducted between managers across the councils 
where operational issues are discussed and appropriately actioned. 
A strategic meeting, attended by relevant Assistant 
Directors/Directors and Portfolio Holders, is then conducted every 
quarter to ensure Change4lincs is meeting its funding obligations 
and to ensure all challenges and opportunities are fully understood 
and tasked back through to the operational group.  
 
The following reports have been requested to come forward as key 
performance indicators: 

• Number of referrals per month (from South Holland and all 4 
councils) 

• Breakdown of type of referral (outreach, support etc)  

• Outcomes of referrals 

Emily Spicer 

Page 25



 

 ACTIONS  

 = completed, * = in hand, x = outstanding    6 
 

• Financial records 

42.  

10. 
22/23 

 28 JULY 2022 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 
 

 

* 
 

 
 

Regarding Appendix B: 
New date for Draft Accounts training required 
UPDATE: To be arranged after the auditor’s field work was 
completed.  Fieldwork still underway (January 2023). 

Sam Knowles 
Ellie Stacey 

    

41. 
21/22 

 17 MARCH 2022 
AUDIT COMMITTEE SELF-ASSESSMENT EXERCISE 
 
 

 

* (a) Question 4 - Is the role and purpose of the audit committee 
understood and accepted across the authority?  
UPDATE: To be considered as part of the training plan being 
developed.  
 

Christine Morgan 
Andrea Tait in 
liaison with Matt 
Waller Sam Knowles 
Chairman 

* (b) Question 6 – Are the arrangements to hold the committee to 
account for its performance operating satisfactorily? The Head of 
Internal Audit confirmed that by producing an annual report to 
Council, this area would be satisfied. 
UPDATE: To be introduced.  Governance and Audit Committee 19 
January 2023 to consider what information to include within the 
annual report. 
UPDATE 10/01/23 
To be introduced to the Committee as part of the Work Programme 
at the 19 January 2023 meeting with a view to a report coming 
forward to request member input at the 16 March 2023 meeting. 
 

Christine Morgan  
Andrea Tait  
in liaison with  
Sam Knowles  
Chairman 

 
* 

(c) Question 18 – Has the Committee obtained feedback on its 
performance from those interacting with the committee or relying 
on its work? Feedback would be requested at year end  
UPDATE: It was noted that Internal Audit would survey: the 
Chairman of G&A to obtain feedback of the Internal Audit’s work; 
and officers regarding interaction with the Committee.  
 

Matt Waller 
Internal Audit 

* (d) Question 15 – Has the membership of the committee been assessed 
against the core knowledge and skills framework and found to be 
satisfactory?  
UPDATE: To be incorporated as part of the Training Plan. 
 

 
Sam Knowles 

42. 
21/22 

 17 MARCH 2022 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 
 

 

*  
 
 

Training package prioritised Pensions and Cyber Security. 
UPDATE: Pensions training completed.  

Sam Knowles 

 

Page 26



 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: Governance and Audit 

DATE: Thursday 19th January 2023 

SUBJECT: 

PURPOSE:  

Q3 Risk Report 22/23 

To provide an update on the Council’s strategic risks for the period 

1st October 2022 to 31st December 2022 

KEY DECISION: N/A 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Portfolio Holder Corporate & Communications, Cllr Jim Astill 

REPORT OF: 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

John Medler, Assistant Director - Governance 

Corey Gooch, Senior Change, Improvement and Performance 

Business Partner 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: N/A 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 

This report and detailed Appendix A seeks to present to Governance and Audit Committee an 

overview of the key risks that the council is exposed to, the action taking place to mitigate those 

risks, and an up to date assessment of their likelihood and impact. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the Committee gives consideration to both the covering report and Appendix A, which 

details the latest assessment of the council’s strategic risks 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To ensure council risks and management of risks are communicated and detailed  

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

Do Nothing 

 

1.  BACKGROUND 
Page 27

Agenda Item 5.



 
By their very nature, strategic risks are those that have been identified as having the potential to 

cause organizational wide impact and will often cover a number of key services and departments. 

Strategic risks are captured within the council’s risk management system, which is available to the 

council’s management team and is reviewed on a regular basis. 

 

2. REPORT 

 

Changes to risk scores 

Whilst all risks have been reviewed since Q2 there is only one key change in scoring to note, this 

relates to the risk of an economic downturn and was previously highlighted by the committee, the 

risk likelihood has been increased by 1 point, making this a total score of 16 and graded “High”. 

Despite a recent high-profile closure of one factory within a large local business late last year, this 

is not unusual in the food manufacturing sector, contracts are lost and gained, and sometimes 

result in periods of dormancy for the factory affected. There has been not been a significant fallout 

from the closure, across the sector locally there are still in excess of 600 vacancies. However, we 

will look to increase the risk by 1, as it is important to factor in rising energy costs which will impact 

the economic climate 

 

Overall Risk Spread 

The spread of risk across all recorded in the council’s latest Strategic Risk Register, as well as the 

Partnership risk register following mitigation by services and the council’s management team, is as 

follows.  

 

Risk level Number of Strategic risks by 
current score 

Critical (Red) 1 

High (Amber) 11 

Medium (Yellow) 6 

Low (Green) 1 

 

Risk level Number of Partnership risks by 
current score 

Critical (Red) 0 

High (Amber) 2 

Medium (Yellow) 0 

Low (Green) 0 

 

Within the strategic risk register included in Appendix A, each risk is ascribed a short narrative 

which seeks to cover the following 

• The risk title 

• A description of what the risk council entail Page 28



• The approach to mitigation  

• The current score of the risk 

 

Risks are graded and scored based on the below criteria in order to assess Likelihood, Impact, 

and in turn the approach to management of such risks. 

Impact score 1 2 3 4 5 

Title Minimal Low Medium High Critical 

Political risk 
Residents unaware 
of authority’s 
actions 

Residents’ access 
to oppose actions 
limited 

Residents’ access 
to oppose actions 
process blocked 

Authority fails to 
effectively 
scrutinise its 
actions 

No scrutiny of 
actions takes place 

Reputation risk 
Increased 
complaints for less 
than one week 

Increased 
complaints for 
more than one 
week 

Negative local 
press coverage for 
one day, increased 
complaints for 
more than one 
week 

Negative national 
press coverage for 
one day, ongoing 
negative local 
coverage 

Negative national 
press coverage 
over several days. 
Public criticism 
from MP, LGA, 
County Council or 
national service 
body 

Financial risk 
Up to 1% of project 
budget 

Up to 5% of project 
budget 

Up to 10% of 
project budget 

Up to 15% of 
project budget 

Over 15% of 
project budget 

Legal risk 
Delays due to legal 
clarifications being 
sought (<1 month) 

Delays due to legal 
clarifications being 
sought (1-6 
months) 

Delays due to legal 
clarifications being 
sought (>6 months) 

Project operations 
potentially subject 
to legal challenge, 
project on hold 
until resolved 

Project operations 
potentially in 
breach of 
legislation, project 
terminated 

Disruption risk 

Individual 
members of staff 
having work 
disrupted  

Multiple members 
of staff unable to 
work 

Total service 
outage for one day 
or less 

Total service 
outage for several 
days 

Total service 
outage for more 
than a week 

Environmental risk 
Immediately 
remedied damage 
in an isolated area 

Easily remedied 
damage in an 
isolated area 

Short term damage 
in an isolated area 
requiring partners 
assistance 

Damage requiring 
special budget 
provision to rectify 

Major or 
widespread 
damage requiring 
central 
government 
assistance 

Contractual risk 
Negative impact on 
key partner 
relationship 

Minor contract 
renegotiation 
required 

Major contract 
renegotiation 
required 

Project aims or 
goal significantly 
altered or sanction 
clauses invoked 

Project failure 
and/or termination 
of contract 

Asset & 
Infrastructure risk 

Individual pieces of 
equipment 
damaged or 
needing 
replacement 

Isolated network 
issues, multiple 
pieces of 
equipment needing 
replacement 

Widespread 
network issues, 
vehicle damaged 

Council properties 
inaccessible, 
vehicle need 
replacing 

Council properties 
damaged, multiple 
vehicles need 
replacing, key 
infrastructure 
outage 

Page 29



Health and Safety 
risk 

People engaging in 
hazardous 
activities without 
awareness 

Individual receives 
minor injuries  

Multiple people 
receive minor 
injuries 

Individual serious 
injury 

Multiple people 
seriously injured, 
individual loss of 
life 

      

Likelihood score 1 2 3 4 5 

Definition Rare Unlikely Possible Likely Almost certain 

Description 

The likelihood of 
the risk has been 
minimised to a 
negligible 
possibility 

The risk is 
technically 
possible, but an 
occurrence is not 
foreseeable in the 
medium-long term 

The risk is a real 
possibility but the 
likelihood of an 
occurrence in the 
short-medium term 
is small 

The risk is probably 
going to occur at 
some point in the 
medium term, 
possibly sooner 

The risk is probably 
going to occur 
imminently 

Timeframe 
Will occur at some 
point in next 50 
years 

Will occur at some 
point in the next 25 
years 

Will occur at some 
point in the next 10 
years 

Will occur at some 
point in the next 5 
years 

Will occur at some 
point in the next 
year 

Probability 10% or less Between 10-30% Between 30-50% Between 50-85% 85% or more 

 

 

3. CONCLUSION 
 
3.1 Overall, the register contained within Appendix A demonstrates that strategic risks are 

being proactively managed by the authority, with a series of mitigations in place to reduce 
and mitigate impact and likelihood across a number of key areas. 

 
3.2        Additionally, the South & East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership risk register is also attached 

to this report (Appendix B), whilst these risks are managed at partnership board level, it has 
been agreed the register is shared with Governance and Audit to provide an oversight into 
partnership level risks which whilst shared, also have an impact on individual councils. 

 
4. EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 

4.1 N/A 
 
5. IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL’S PARTNERSHIP 

 N/A 

 

5.2 CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

The report presents risk management of key areas relating to the corporate priorities which 

highlight the areas of focus in council delivery of services. 

5.3 STAFFING 

 The report contains information on Council risk which does convey some information 

relating to staffing. 

5.4 CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 None Page 30



5.5 DATA PROTECTION 

None 

5.6 FINANCIAL 

None 
 
5.7 RISK MANAGEMENT 

 Issues may be subject to risk management measures to protect Council interests. 

5.8 STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 

 N/A 

5.9 REPUTATION 

 Risk issues can cause some reputational consequence. It is the purpose of this report to 

highlight issues at an early stage. 

5.10 CONTRACTS 

 The report contains information on Council risk which does convey some information 

relating to contract matters. 

5.11 CRIME AND DISORDER 

 The report contains information on Council risk which does convey some information 

relating to crime. 

5.12 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 

 None 

5.13 HEALTH AND WELL BEING 

 The report contains information on Council risk which does convey some information 

relating to health and wellbeing. 

5.14  CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

 The report contains information on Council risk which does convey some information 

relating to environmental matters. 

 

6. ACRONYMS 

6.1 PSPS – Public Sector Partnerships Ltd 

LCC – Lincolnshire County Council 

CTS – Council Tax Support 

ICO – Information Commissioner’s Office 

LGO - Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman 

 

Page 31



APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A Q3 SHDC Strategic Risk Register 22/23 

APPENDIX B Q3 Partnership Risk Register 22/23 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 

in the production of this report 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

Name of body Date 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Corey Gooch – Business Intelligence and Change 

Manager 

Signed off by: John Medler - Assistant Director - Governance 

Approved for publication: Councillor Jim Astill – Portfolio Holder (Corporate 

and Communications) 

 

 

Page 32



Q3 SHDC Risk Register 

 

Risk Name 

R
is

k 
O

w
n

e
r 

Description/Impact Controls/Mitigation Likelihood Impact 
Overall 
Risk 

Housing Team 
Resources and 

Support 

Em
ily

 S
p

ic
er

 

The council's ability to meet the 
demands for support with 

homelessness and housing advice, 
supporting residents in preventing 
homelessness before it occurs, and 

when it does occur supporting 
residents in securing. The Homeless 
Reduction Team continue to receive 
significantly high numbers of people 
presenting homeless with national 
predictions indicating that this will 
continue for the foreseeable future 

across the country 

A number of mitigations are being pursued to reduce the impact of 
the increase wherever possible, specifically in respect to people 

presenting at point of homelessness. These mitigations include in 
the short-term ensuring social media campaigns provide key 

information so that people at risk of homelessness are engaging 
early, ensuring that our website provides clear information 

specifically around preventing homelessness, working with the 
Community and Voluntary sector to ensure that people facing 

homelessness are signposted early to help and support. Two new 
posts are being introduced into the Housing Options Team to 

respond to the demand on the service. The Homelessness 
Accommodation Officer will manage all aspects of temporary 

accommodation and work with clients to facilitate moving into 
permanent accommodation as soon as possible. They will also 

regularly review the temporary accommodation options utilised by 
the team, ensuring that they are fit for purpose, appropriate and 
cost effective. The Homelessness Prevention Officer will focus on 

all aspects of early intervention with the aim of increasing 
preventative activity taken by the team and reducing the need for 

temporary accommodation.  

5 4 
Critical 

(20) 

 

Cyber Incident 

Ja
ck

ie
 W

ri
gh

t The risk of the council's ICT 
infrastructure being severally impact 

as the result of a cyber incident, 
both in terms of downtime of 

systems and loss of 

Defence in depth in the form of firewalls, Mimecast and antivirus is 
deployed both at the perimeter and the internal Local Area 

Network.  The ICT team play an active part in the East Midlands 
WARP (Warning, Advice and Reporting Point) which allow us to 

have early sight of issues being experienced across neighbouring 

3 5 High (15)  

P
age 33



data/information. The threat 
landscape across the UK is 

continuously increasing and appears 
on the national risk assessment. The 
Council need to constantly adapt in 
its security mitigation and training 
to ensure they are both prepared 

from a technical and from a people 
aspect 

Authorities and Agencies.  ICT is also a member of the CISP formed 
by the National Cyber Security Centre, this allows us early 

awareness from the central agency responsible for cyber threats 
across the UK as well as allowing them to monitor our environment 

to a degree.  These mitigations afford ICT awareness of emerging 
threats 

With respect to this risk, PSPS has been successful in its application 
for a grant from DLUHC on behalf of EL, SH and BBC to improve the 
security posture of the Councils.  The maximum grant of £175,000 
has been secured.  There are several caveats around the award and 
its use which we will need to adhere to as we develop and 
implement the action plan. 

 

P
age 34



Economic 
Downturn 

M
ic

h
el

le
 S

ac
ks

 The risk of the economy of South 
Holland experiencing a downturn, 
resulting in both employment and 

business closures, and having a 
consequential impact on a range of 

resident wellbeing. 

The council regularly monitors the impact of the local economy 
through regular engagement with businesses and partners. 

Engagement with business and the council remains high. A large 
proportion of the economy of South Holland is structured around 

the agriculture, food production and distribution, and horticultural 
sector which continues to be largely resilient to the effects of the 
pandemic on the wider economy from a demand-side perspective 
but continues to grapple with supply-side constraints relating to 
access to labour, logistics capacity, carbon reduction and supply-
chain challenges that impede growth. The council's longer term 

economic strategy of supporting innovation and productivity in the 
core agri-food sector to overcome some of these challenges is 

intended to further support this resilience, therefore supporting 
the wider supply chain and business cluster within the district. 

4 4 High (16)  

Changes to the 
council’s 
strategic 

partnership 
arrangements R

o
b

 B
ar

lo
w

 

Enabling and embedding changes to 
the organisation, linked to the new 

strategic partnership. 

Proactive management of risks and issues are undertaken at the 
programme management board 

2 4 
Medium 

(8) 
 

Council Financial 
Positions 

Sa
m

an
th

a 
K

n
o

w
le

s 
 The Council's medium term financial 

strategy has identified budget gaps 
in future years, and this has been 

exacerbated by the Covid pandemic 

We have developed a partnership delivery plan to look at future 
service and commercialisation opportunities. 

5 3 High (15)  

P
age 35



and its impact on income. Future 
funding is very uncertain and the 
future impact of covid on future 

income levels also unclear. 
Inflationary pressures in terms of 

fuel, power and pay are also being 
seen. 

Reserves are at levels sufficient to accommodate short term issues 
whilst longer term plans are brought into place depending upon 

the size of the financial challenge. 

 

Retention of staff 

Ja
m

es
 G

ilb
er

t The recruitment of new and 
retention of existing staff within the 
organisation affecting the ability for 
the organisation to deliver and meet 

its objectives 

The workforce strategy is aligned across the 3 Councils. A 
development programme is in place to assist with both personal 

and professional development and to further develop the talents of 
individual employees. This programme sits alongside a package of 

personal support for staff. Managers are encouraged to have 
regular 'one to ones' with staff to ensure that they are fully 

supported in their roles 

2 4 
Medium 

(8) 
 

Failure to deliver 
the capital 

programme 

Sa
m

an
th

a 
K

n
o

w
le

s 

There are several million pounds 
worth of proposed capital projects 
that are ongoing over the next 3-5 
years, these include new schemes 

and renovations and repairs to 
existing assets, key factors such as 
capacity to deliver both internally 

and externally need to be monitored 
and managed as well as financial 

constraints and pressures. 

Capital working groups are in place to monitor delivery of all these 
projects. Along with regular PFH meetings and monthly directorate 

meetings. 
Building relationships with local contractors 

The effective use of frameworks 
Market intelligence 

Accurate cost planning 

3 2 
Medium 

(6) 
 

Failure to deliver 
new homes 
programme 

M
at

th
ew

 H
o

ga
n

 

There is a partnership aim to deliver 
1,000 properties over 10 years, this 

risk identifies the failure to meet 
this target. 

Housing working groups are in place to monitor delivery of all these 
projects. Along with regular PFH meetings and monthly directorate 

meetings. 
Accurate cost planning 

Building relationships with local contractors 
The effective use of frameworks 

3 2 
Medium 

(6) 
 

P
age 36



Market intelligence 

Failure to meet 
statutory 

requirements 
regarding general 

fund assets A
n

d
y 

Fi
sh

er
 

This risk identifies the need for the 
council to adhere to all prevailing 
statutory codes as they relate to 

council assets and functions 

The asset team have compiled a working list of assets that either 
have compliance contracts in place or we have local contractors 

with the jobs in hand. A spreadsheet has been created and a 
considerable amount of time has been spent updating it ready so 

we can add to the new database of Technology Forge. 

1 4 Low (4) 

 

The restructure has taken place, so we now have the SOPM 
(Strategic & Operational Property Manager) for budget 

management, meetings job criteria and Strategic Property 
acquisitions and sales. This role encompasses the day to day 

running of the asset team. The Estates Officer for lease 
arrangements, new tenants, site management and all tenant 

referrals including day to day issues. Repairs officer - For day-to-day 
repairs and allocation of work required in conjunction with liaison 
via the Estates Officer and SOPM. The Project Manager role is also 
now defined and runs all medium and major projects for the team. 
The SOPM would be the Senior Responsible Person for the Assets 

and Compliance routines. 
Training takes place on a required basis. Asbestos training being 
the last training of significance that was undertaken by the team 

 

Supporting 
recovery from 

Covid19 for the 
local economy – 

people and 
businesses M

ic
h

el
le

 S
ac

ks
 

It is anticipated that the pandemic 
will have an impact on national and 

local economies; and may affect 
businesses and jobs in the district.  

 If the Government and Local 
Government is not able to help 

economies recover, there may be 
longer term challenges for 

businesses and employees resulting 
in job losses with direct impacts on 

SHDC continues to be fully engaged with partners, post Covid. The 
UKSPF provides an opportunity to further support businesses and 
supporting people into work. SHDC will work with partners to help 

tackle actual social and health impacts arising as a result of the 
pandemic; not only on deprived communities and vulnerable 

groups, but for people who may never have been out of work or 
suffered poor mental health but may find themselves in that 

position over the next few years. 

 4 4 High (16)  

P
age 37



residents.  Areas of deprivation will 
be of particular concern. 

  
When businesses and people are 

negatively impacted resulting in loss 
of jobs, council services can come 

under additional pressure. 

Failure to comply 
with Information 
Governance and 

Management 
requirements Jo

h
n

 M
ed

le
r 

Increased understanding of the 
public's right to information means 
that we must be fully aware of our 
legal duties.  The increase in data 

also means we must be able to 
manage information more 

effectively, including reducing the 
amount of unnecessary data held. 

Data protection breaches can result 
in significant fines from the 

Information Commissioner's Office.  

All employees receive annual online training in data protection. 
Arrangements are in place to ensure that the organisation is 

compliant with the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) 
requirement, including lead staff attending training.  PSPS also have 

a lead officer overseeing compliance. 
A Data Protection Officer and Deputy are in place who monitor 

training, compliance, and development of policy; also, full 
assessment of any breaches, providing recommendations for 

continual improvement.  

 4 3  High (12)  

Implementation 
of the 

Environment Act 
2021 

V
ic

to
ri

a 
B

u
rg

es
s 

This new legislation will have an 
impact on the way that waste 
services are delivered and will 

require operational 
changes.  Changing service delivery 
will require financial support, and at 

this stage it is unclear whether 
additional budget will be made 

available centrally.  

The Lincolnshire authorities comprising the Lincolnshire Waste 
Partnership are working together to identify the impact of the 

Environment Act across the county. When the statutory guidance is 
provided by Defra, clear proposals will be drawn up for this 

authority.   

 4 4 High (16)  

Local Plan not 
delivering 

economic growth 
& prosperity 

M
ik

e 
G

ild
er

sl
ee

v

e
s 

The Southeast Lincolnshire Local 
Plan (2019) seeks to support 
proposals which assist in the 

delivery of economic prosperity and 

The Local Plan is monitored regularly with an Annual Report 
produced, in addition, measures such as the 5-Year Housing Land 

Supply and Housing Delivery Test are good indicators as to the 
delivery of the Local Plan. Decisions are taken against the plan, 

3  2  
Medium 

(6) 
 

P
age 38



some 13,800 jobs in South Holland 
across the Plan period. Risk relates 

to allocated sites not coming 
forward or broader economic 

downturn nationally 

however, they do not preclude other developments from coming 
forward as appropriate for consideration. Appeal decisions also 

inform our understanding of Plan performance. There is a statutory 
requirement for a 5-year review of the Local Plan (after 2024). 

There is presently no indication that the plan is not performing as 
required (even when giving regard to Covid and Brexit effects), and 
it is considered that the plan is sufficient to support the growth and 

prosperity of the district. 

 

 

Capital 
Programme 

A
d

ri
an

 S
ib

le
y 

Failure to deliver Major capital 
schemes within the capital 

programme resulting in 
Reputational Damage 

Financial impact 
Failure to deliver council objectives 

Reduced ability to secure future 
funding 

Robust programme and project management 
Regular and structured reporting mechanisms 

Robust and effective governance (financial and project) 
Effective working with partners and 3rd Party delivery 

Risk transference and mitigation 

2 3 
Medium 

(6) 
 

Externally 
Funded Schemes 

A
d

ri
an

 S
ib

le
y 

Failure to deliver Major capital 
schemes within the capital 

programme resulting in 
Reputational Damage 

Financial impact 
Failure to deliver council objectives 

Reduced ability to secure future 
funding 

Robust programme and project management 
Regular and structured reporting mechanisms 

Robust and effective governance (financial and project) 
Effective working with partners and 3rd Party delivery 

Risk transference and mitigation 

3 4 High (12)  

Internal 
communications 

Ja
m

es
 G

ilb
er

t The risk is that internal colleagues 
do not fully understand the aims 
and ambitions of the partnership 

and the role they play in the 
partnership’s success. 

Internal communications approach already established but is being 
reviewed 

Staff informed levels are monitored through the performance 
framework.  

The scoring of this risk has been raised at Governance and Audit as 
this links to the metric which measures the % of staff who said they 
felt informed about the partnership, the Risk owner does not feel 

the risk needs to be increased when the context of this PI is 
considered, this staff poll question provides three response 

3 5 High (15)  

P
age 39



options: Yes, No or Sometimes.  When Yes & Sometimes are 
combined this indicator increases to 93.1%. However, Deputy Chief 
Executives recently delivered sessions with their Assistant Directors 
and Service Managers which included a review of the last year and 
opportunity to gauge service level understanding and feedback on 

the objectives and vision of the Partnership.  The feedback from 
these sessions will help to shape an action plan for any required 

communication around the partnership moving forward and will be 
incorporated into a wider internal communications review. 

Regular videos from Senior leadership team to the workforce 
Monthly service manager meetings 

Financial 
hardship 

 E
m

ily
 S

p
ic

er
 

The risk of financial hardship to local 
people in the current economic 

climate 

Taking action to improve housing standards; 
The new Homelessness Accommodation Officer and Homelessness 
Prevention Officer roles within the Housing Options Team will work 
together to improve relationships with local landlords, with the aim 

of increasing the supply of available privately rented 
accommodation to our customers and to ensure that landlords feel 

better supported if any issues arise with their tenants during the 
lifetime of the tenancy. 

Support to local people on budgeting, training, and jobs; 
Political pressure on the government to address fuel bills 

nationally. 

3 4 High (12)  

Service delivery 

Ja
m

es
 G

ilb
er

t 

Risks to service delivery 

Staff resources maximised under the Partnership. 
Working with external partners to deliver shared priorities. 

HR support on recruitment and retention. 
Training plans. 

Values & behaviours work; 
Annual Delivery Plan, Workforce Development, policies, and 

procedures. 

3 3 
Medium 

(9) 
 

Performance of 
PSPS contract Ja

m
es

 
G

ilb
er

t The risk being that the services 
provided to the council via its 

contract with PSPS fails to meet the 

Quarterly PIs are provided to Management Team. There is a single 
client lead across the partnership for the contract, with several 
assistant directors having direct ownership and oversight of the 

various service level agreements. 

4 3 High (12)  

P
age 40



needs and expectations of the 
councils 

External 
Communication 

Ja
m

es
 G

ilb
er

t Poor quality external 
communication with stakeholders, 

residents and the wider public 
impacts upon the council's 
reputation and its ability to 
effectively deliver services 

External communications are quality checked by the 
Communications Team to ensure that the messaging is effective 

and relevant to its audience. The team also gather statistics across 
a range of areas to understand how much interaction is being 

achieved through social media channels, for example, and adapt 
messages and channel shift to ensure messages are being heard 

and well received. To further mitigate this risk, media 
communications training has been undertaken by most senior 
officers in the past 6 months.  In 2023, post-election, further 

member media communications training will be provided. A service 
review is taking place which seeks to introduce greater resilience 

partnership wide. 

2 4 
Medium 

(8) 
 

Technology 
infrastructure 

failure 

Ja
m

es
 G

ilb
er

t 

The loss of ICT impacting upon the 
organisation to operate effectively 
and deliver services to residents. 

The Council relies heavily on the ICT 
infrastructure for normal business 
operation. Whilst resilience is built 
into the environment, the loss of a 

service is always possible. 
Depending on the service lost, the 

impact could be severe 

The Council has a series of resilience arrangements in place 
through its service provider, PSPS. Work is continuous to ensure 

these are fit for purpose across a range of areas. 
In recognition of the outage of the Internet connection in 

September, PSPS considered an elevated risk score, however an 
outage does not mean the likelihood of reoccurrence is any 

greater, therefore whist it may have been elevated at that given 
time, the overall rating remains the same for the period of this risk 

register.   
In relation to this a Major Incident review has been conducted and 
is in the process of being shared with the ICT Strategy Board, SLT 

and Portfolio Holder.  This review considers resiliency options that 
may be used to lower the risk scoring in the future.  These options 

were previously considered in 16/17 by the then SHDC Strategic ICT 
Manager and corresponding Executive Director and were 

considered cost prohibitive when reviewed against likelihood. 

2 5 High (10)  

 

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Q3 Partnership Risk Register 

Risk name 

R
is

k 

o
w

n
e

r 

Description Cause/s 
Potential impact and 
consequences 

Mitigation: existing control 
measures in place 

Risk score 

Likelihood Impact 
Overall 

risk 

External Reputation 

A
D

 -
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

The risk is that external 
partners and local people 

are unsure of the 
partnerships purpose, 

ambitions and objectives. 

Lack of profile for the 
partnership regarding its 

achievements and 
objectives 

Reputational damage 
Lack of credibility 
amongst partners 

Lack of understanding 
within the community 

There is a clear business case to 
support the partnerships 

development setting out clear 
aims and ambitions 

There is a focused effort to 
engage proactively with 

partners on the delivery of the 
business case. 

There is a drive to secure trade 
and local media coverage to 

explain the work of the 
partnership. 

Specific Partnership 
communication channels are in 

place, including website and 
social media. 

3 5 
High 
(15) 

Partnership work 
programme 

A
D

 -
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

The risk of failure to 
deliver the business case 

and associated work 
programme 

Lack of focus 
Competing priorities 

Unanticipated 
opportunities 

Business case and work 
programme not 

delivered and therefore 
the partnership falling to 
deliver on expectations 

Annual delivery plan is in place, 
which flows from the 3-year 
work programme agreed by 

council 
Annual delivery plan is aligned 

to budget setting 
6 Monthly performance report 
to council, setting out the work 
of the partnership for the sub-

region 
Joint performance and Joint risk 

framework in place 
Joint project management 

framework in place 

3 4 
High 
(12) 

 

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT TO: Governance and Audit Committee 

DATE: Thursday, 19 January 2023 

SUBJECT: 

 

PURPOSE:  

Draft Treasury Management Policy and Treasury Management 

Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement 

and Annual Investment Strategy 2023/24 

To provide pre-decision scrutiny to the strategy being proposed. 

KEY DECISION: No 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Portfolio Holder for Finance, Commercialisation & Partnerships 

REPORT OF: 

 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

Christine Marshall – Deputy Chief Executive (Corporate 

Development) & S151 

Sean Howsam, Interim Treasury & Investment Manager (PSPSL) 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: None 

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 

SUMMARY 

This report is the Draft Treasury Management Policy and Strategy Statement for the 2023/24 

financial year and is included as part of the Budget Setting Report that is submitted to Council 

for approval. 

As the report is a treasury report it is being submitted to Governance and Audit Committee for 

scrutiny prior to submission to Cabinet and Council. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the Governance and Audit Committee scrutinise the Treasury Management Policy 

(Appendix A) and the Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision 

Policy and Annual Investment Strategy 2022/23 (Appendix B) and make any comments and 

suggestions for consideration by Cabinet on 14 February 2023 and Council on 2 March 2023 

when they consider these documents as part of the budget report. 

 

 
Page 45

Agenda Item 6.



REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To comply with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of 

Practice on Treasury Management. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

Members have the option of making comments to Cabinet in respect of the proposed strategy 

or alternatively making no comments. 

 

1. BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that cash raised 

during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of the treasury management operation is 

to ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with cash being available when it is 

needed.  Surplus monies are invested in low risk counterparties or instruments 

commensurate with the Council’s low risk appetite, providing adequate liquidity initially 

before considering investment return. 

 

1.2 The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the 

Council’s capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the 

Council, essentially the longer-term cash flow planning, to ensure that the Council can meet 

its capital spending obligations. This management of longer-term cash may involve 

arranging long or short-term loans or using longer-term cash flow surpluses. On occasion, 

when it is prudent and economic, any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet 

Council risk or cost objectives. 

 

1.3 CIPFA defines treasury management as: 

 

“The management of the local authority’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, including 

its banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks 

associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with 

those risks.” 

 

1.4 The Council’s treasury function is undertaken by Public Sector Partnership Services Limited 

(PSPSL) on behalf of the Council. 

 

1.5 The CIPFA 2021 Prudential and Treasury Management Codes require all local authorities to 

prepare a capital strategy report which will provide the following: 

 

• a high-level long term overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and 

treasury management activity contribute to the provision of services 

• an overview of how the associated risk is managed 

• the implications for future financial sustainability 

 

The aim of this capital strategy is to ensure that all elected members on the full council fully 

understand the overall long-term policy objectives and resulting capital strategy Page 46



requirements, governance procedures and risk appetite.  The capital strategy is being 

reported separately. 

 

2. REPORT 

 

2.1 There are no proposed changes to the Treasury Management Policy Statement in Appendix 

A and it is attached for completeness. 

 

2.2 The Council is required to set out its Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum 

Revenue Provision Policy and Annual Investment Strategy for the forthcoming year. These 

outline the Council’s strategy for borrowing and its policies for managing its investments 

and for giving priority to the security and liquidity of those investments. Our strategy 

statements for 2022/23 are attached at Appendix B. The strategy statements cover: 

 

• reporting requirements 

• capital prudential indicators 2022/23 to 2027/28 

• the borrowing requirement 

• the MRP policy 

• the use of the Council’s resources and the investment position 

• prudential and treasury indicators 

• treasury limits in force which will limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council 

• prospects for interest rates 

• the borrowing strategy 

• policy on borrowing in advance of need 

• debt rescheduling 

• the investment policy 

• creditworthiness policy 

• country limits 

• investment strategy 

 

2.3 The strategy document presented to Governance and Audit for scrutiny is currently at draft 

stage. This is because the future Capital Programme has yet to be finalised and approved by 

Council. Once this is known the tables within the strategy document shown at Appendix B 

will be amended and considered by Cabinet prior to submission to Council for approval 

before the commencement of the 2023/24 financial year. 

 

2.4 The Council’s strategy statement has been prepared in accordance with the revised CIPFA 

Treasury Management Code and will require approval by Full Council. In addition there will 

be Quarterly and Mid-Year Treasury Reports and an Annual Report submitted to 

Governance and Audit Committee. The aim of these reporting arrangements is to ensure 

that those with ultimate responsibility for the treasury management function appreciate 

fully the implications of treasury management policies and activities, and that those 

implementing policies and executing transactions have properly fulfilled their 

responsibilities with regard to delegation and reporting. 

 

 

 Page 47



3. CONCLUSION 

3.1 This report has been produced based on information available from the budget setting 

process. As this process is ongoing the information is subject to amendment prior to its final 

submission to Council 

4. EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 

4.1 None 
 
5.    IMPLICATIONS 

5.1  SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP 

5.1.1  None 

5.2  CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

5.2.1  The Treasury Management Strategy (incorporating the Annual Investment Strategy) aims to 

achieve the optimum performance from the Council’s cash flow, debt and investment 

operations and effectively control the associated risks. This will help to finance the 

corporate priorities of the Council. 

5.3  STAFFING 

5.3.1 None 

5.4  CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.4.1 This Council is required to produce a Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum 

Revenue Provision Policy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy before the 

commencement of each financial year to comply with the Chartered Institute of Public 

Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management. The report 

has no implications which would affect the constitution and does not therefore warrant a 

further change in the constitution. 

5.4.2 Plans and strategies for control of the Council’s borrowing, investments, capital expenditure 

and minimum revenue provision form part of the Council’s policy framework and are 

therefore a non-executive (Council) function under the Council’s Constitution. 

5.5  DATA PROTECTION 

5.5.1  None 

5.6  FINANCIAL 

5.6.1 Adoption of the proposed Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy will ensure sound financial 
controls associated with the management of the authority’s investments and cash flows, its 
banking, money market and capital market transactions and safeguard these assets. 

 
5.7  RISK MANAGEMENT 

5.7.1 The Strategy will put in place measures for the effective control of the risks associated with 

Treasury Management and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those 

risks. The Council’s priority is the security of its investments. 
Page 48



5.8  STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 

5.8.1 This report is being submitted for pre decision scrutiny prior to submission to Cabinet and 

Council. 

5.8.2 Link Group, who are external treasury advisors to the Council, have been consulted in 

relation to the compilation of this report. 

5.9  REPUTATION 

5.9.1 The security of investments is the Council’s main priority when investing surplus cash. 

5.10  CONTRACTS 

5.10.1 None 

5.11  CRIME AND DISORDER 

5.11.1 None 

5.12 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 

5.12.1 None 

5.13  HEALTH AND WELL BEING 

5.13.1 None 

5.14  CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.14.1 None directly from the report. The Council is currently liaising with external treasury 

advisors to establish how these issues can be taken into considering when assessing the 

suitability of financial institution for investment purposes. 

6. ACRONYMS 

6.1 CDS – Credit Default Swap 

6.2 CFR – Capital Financing Requirement 

6.3 CIPFA – Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy  

6.4 CPI – Consumer Price Index 

6.5 DLUHC – Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities 

6.6 DMADF – Debt Management Agency Deposit Facility 

6.7 GF – General Fund 

6.8 HRA – Housing Revenue Account 

6.9 LB – Liability Benchmark 

6.10 LOBO - Lender Option Borrower Option 

6.11 MHCLG – Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 

6.12 MPC – Monetary Policy Committee 

6.13 MRP – Minimum Revenue Provision 

6.14 OLTL – Other Long Term Liabilities 

6.15 PFI – Public Finance Initiative 

6.16 PSPSL - Public Sector Partnership Services Limited 

6.17 PWLB – Public Works Loan Board 

6.18 SONIA – Sterling Overnight Index Average 

6.19 VRP – Voluntary Revenue Provision 

Page 49



APPENDICES 

(If none then insert the word ‘None’ and delete the below text/boxes). 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A Treasury Management Policy Statement 2023-24 

APPENDIX B Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum 

Revenue Provision Policy Statement and Annual Investment 

Plan 2023-24 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and  

Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on  

Treasury Management. 

CIPFA Website 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body for the 2023/24 

financial year.   

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Sean Howsam  

Sean.Howsam@pspsl.co.uk  

Signed off by: Deputy Chief Executive - Corporate Development 

(S151) 

Christine.Marshall@sholland.gov.uk 

 

Page 50



  APPENDIX A 

Treasury Management Policy Statement 2023/24 

South Holland District Council defines its treasury management activities as: 

1. The management of the local authority’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, 

including its banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective 

control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum 

performance consistent with those risks. 

2. This Council regards the successful identification, monitoring and control of risk to 

be the prime criteria by which the effectiveness of its treasury management activities 

will be measured. Accordingly, the analysis and reporting of treasury management 

activities will focus on their risk implications for the organisation, and any financial 

instruments entered into to manage these risks. 

3. This Council acknowledges that effective treasury management will provide support 

towards the achievement of its business and service objectives. It is therefore 

committed to the principles of achieving value for money in treasury management, 

and to employing suitable comprehensive performance measurement techniques, 

within the context of effective risk management. 

 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



  APPENDIX B 

 

 

 

 

 

Draft Treasury Management Strategy Statement 

 

Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement and Annual 

Investment Strategy 

 

South Holland District Council 

 

2023/24 

 

 

  

Page 53



  APPENDIX B 

1. INTRODUCTION 

Background 

The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that cash raised during 
the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of the treasury management operation is to ensure that 
this cash flow is adequately planned, with cash being available when it is needed.  Surplus monies 
are invested in low-risk counterparties or instruments commensurate with the Council’s low risk 
appetite, providing adequate liquidity initially before considering investment return. 
 
The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the Council’s capital 
plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the Council, essentially the 
longer-term cash flow planning, to ensure that the Council can meet its capital spending obligations. 
This management of longer-term cash may involve arranging long or short-term loans or using 
longer-term cash flow surpluses. On occasion, when it is prudent and economic, any debt 
previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk or cost objectives.  
 
The contribution the treasury management function makes to the Council is critical, as the balance 
of debt and investment operations ensure liquidity or the ability to meet spending commitments as 
they fall due, either on day-to-day revenue or for larger capital projects.  The treasury operations 
will see a balance of the interest costs of debt and the investment income arising from cash deposits 
affecting the available budget.  Since cash balances generally result from reserves and balances, 
it is paramount to ensure adequate security of the sums invested, as a loss of principal will in effect 
result in a loss to the General Fund Balance. 
 
CIPFA defines treasury management as: 

 
“The management of the local authority’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, including its 
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks 
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those 
risks.” 

 
The Council’s treasury function is undertaken by Public Sector Partnership Services Ltd (PSPSL) 
on behalf of the Council. PSPSL is responsible for the: 
 
• Production of the annual treasury management strategy  
• Production of regular treasury management policy reports 
• Production of treasury management practices 
• Production of budget and budget variations relating to the treasury management function 
• Production of management information reports 
• Provision of adequate treasury management resources and skills, and effective division of 

responsibilities within the treasury management function 
• Arrangement of the appointment of external service providers. 
 
Whilst any commercial initiatives or loans to third parties will impact on the treasury function, these 
activities are generally classed as non-treasury activities, (arising usually from capital expenditure), 
and are separate from the day-to-day treasury management activities. 
  

Page 54



  APPENDIX B 

1.2 Reporting requirements 

1.2.1 Capital Strategy 
 
The CIPFA 2021 Prudential and Treasury Management Codes require all local authorities to 
prepare a capital strategy report which will provide the following:  
 

• a high-level long-term overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and 
treasury management activity contribute to the provision of services 

• an overview of how the associated risk is managed 

• the implications for future financial sustainability 
 
The aim of this capital strategy is to ensure that all elected members on the full council fully 
understand the overall long-term policy objectives and resulting capital strategy requirements, 
governance procedures and risk appetite. 
 
 
1.2.2 Treasury Management reporting 
 
The Council is currently required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main treasury 
reports each year, which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and actuals.   
 

a. Prudential and treasury indicators and treasury strategy (this report) - The first, 
and most important report is forward looking and covers: 

• the capital plans, (including prudential indicators) 

• a minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy, (how residual capital expenditure is charged 
to revenue over time) 

• the treasury management strategy, (how the investments and borrowings are to be 
organised), including treasury indicators; and  

• an annual investment strategy, (the parameters on how investments are to be managed) 

 
b. A mid-year treasury management report – This is primarily a progress report and 

will update members on the capital position, amending prudential indicators as 
necessary, and whether any policies require revision. In addition, this Council will 
receive quarterly update reports. 

 
c. An annual treasury report – This is a backward-looking review document and 

provides details of a selection of actual prudential and treasury indicators and actual 
treasury operations compared to the estimates within the strategy. 
 

Scrutiny 
 
The above reports are required to be adequately scrutinised before being recommended to 
the Council.  This role is undertaken by the Governance and Audit Committee. 
 
Quarterly reports  
 
In addition to the three major reports detailed above, from 2023/24 quarterly reporting (end of 
June/end of December) is also required.  However, these additional reports do not have to be 
reported to Full Council/Cabinet but do require to be adequately scrutinised.  This role is 
undertaken by the Governance and Audit Committee.  The reports, specifically, should 
comprise updated Treasury/Prudential Indicators. 
 

Page 55



  APPENDIX B 

1.3 Treasury Management Strategy for 2023/24 

The strategy for 2023/24 covers two main areas: 
 
Capital issues 

• the capital expenditure plans and the associated prudential indicators; 

• the minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy. 

 

Treasury management issues 

• the current treasury position 

• treasury indicators which limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council 

• prospects for interest rates 

• the borrowing strategy 

• policy on borrowing in advance of need 

• debt rescheduling 

• the investment strategy 

• creditworthiness policy; and 

• the policy on use of external service providers 

 

These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, DLUHC Investment 
Guidance, DLUHC MRP Guidance, the CIPFA Prudential Code and the CIPFA Treasury 
Management Code. 

1.4 Training 

The CIPFA Treasury Management Code requires the responsible officer to ensure that 

members with responsibility for treasury management receive adequate training in treasury 

management.  This especially applies to members responsible for scrutiny.  The Council has 

addressed this by targeted training courses for relevant members.  

 

The training needs of PSPSL treasury management officers are periodically reviewed and is 

supplemented by targeted training as necessary and technical advice from our treasury 

management advisors. 

 

As a minimum the Council will carry out the following to monitor and review knowledge and 

skills:  

 

• Record attendance at training and ensure action is taken where poor attendance is 
identified.  

• Prepare tailored learning plans for treasury management officers and members.  

• Require treasury management officers and members to undertake self-assessment 
against the required competencies (as set out in the schedule that may be adopted by 
the Council).  

• Have regular communication with officers and members, encouraging them to highlight 
training needs on an ongoing basis. 

 

Training for members will be arranged as required and the training needs of treasury 

management officers are periodically reviewed.  

Page 56



  APPENDIX B 

A formal record of the training received by officers central to the Treasury function will be 

maintained by the Treasury and Investments Manager (PSPSL).  Similarly, a formal record of 

the treasury management/capital finance training received by members will also be 

maintained by Democratic Services. 

1.5 Treasury management consultants 

PSPSL uses Link Group, Link Treasury Services Limited as its external treasury management 
advisors for the Council. 
 
The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions remains with the 
organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not placed upon the services of our 
external service providers. All decisions will be undertaken with regards to all available information, 
including, but not solely, our treasury advisers. 
 
It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of treasury management 
services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources. The Council will ensure that 
the terms of their appointment and the methods by which their value will be assessed are properly 
agreed and documented and subjected to regular review.  
 

2.  THE CAPITAL PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2022/23 TO 2027/28  
 
The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury management activity. 
The output of the capital expenditure plans is reflected in the prudential indicators, which are 
designed to assist Members’ overview and confirm capital expenditure plans. 
 
2.1 Capital Expenditure and Financing 
 
This prudential indicator is a summary of the Council’s capital expenditure plans, both those 
agreed previously, and those forming part of this budget cycle. Members approve capital 
expenditure forecasts as part of the annual Budget report. 
 
The capital expenditure plans mirror those within the budget report and will be amended 
throughout the year as spending plans alter. 
 
The table below summarises the capital expenditure plans and financing.  Any shortfall of 
resources results in a funding borrowing need. The figures in this table are subject to change 
during the budget setting process. 
 

Capital Expenditure  
£’000’s 

2022/23 
Estimate 

2023/24 
Estimate 

2024/25 
Estimate 

2025/26 
Estimate 

2026/27 
Estimate 

2027/28 
Estimate 

General Fund 11,418 6,525 1,896 74 19 19 

HRA 9,660 13,509 16,911 11,016 11,352 2,000 

Total  21,078 20,034 18,807 11,090 11,371 2,019 

Financing (15,720) (16,016) (18,751) (11,035) (11,371) (2,019) 

Net financing need 
for the year 

5,358 4,018 56 55 - - 

 
  

Page 57



  APPENDIX B 

2.2 The Councils borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement) 

 

The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). The 

CFR is simply the total historic outstanding capital expenditure which has not yet been paid 

for from either revenue or capital resources. It is essentially a measure of the Council’s 

indebtedness and so its underlying borrowing need. Any capital expenditure above, which has 

not immediately been paid for through a revenue or capital source, will increase the CFR. 

The CFR does not increase indefinitely, as the minimum revenue provision (MRP) is a 
statutory annual revenue charge which broadly reduces the indebtedness in line with each 
asset’s life, and so charges the economic consumption of capital assets as they are used. 
 
The CFR includes any other long term liabilities (e.g., Public Finance Initiative (PFI) schemes, 
finance leases). Whilst these increase the CFR, and therefore the Council’s borrowing 
requirement, these types of schemes include a borrowing facility and so the Council is not 
required to separately borrow for these schemes. The Council currently has no such schemes 
within the CFR. 
 
As part of the formal governance process, the Council approves the CFR projections as 
follows: 
 

£000’s 2022/23 
Estimate 

2023/24 
Estimate 

2024/25 
Estimate 

2025/26 
Estimate 

2026/27 
Estimate 

2027/28 
Estimate 

CFR – Non HRA 13,925 17,627 17,255 16,878 16,442 16,006 

CFR – HRA 68,427 68,427 68,427 68,427 68,427 68,427 

Total CFR 82,352 86,054 85,682 85,305 84,869 84,433 

Movement in CFR 5,221 3,702 (372) (377) (436) (436) 

       

Net financing need for 
the year (above) 

5,358 4,018 56 55 - - 

Less MRP/VRP and 
other financing 
movements 

(137) (316) (428) (432) (436) (436) 

Movement in CFR 5,221 3,702 (372) (377) (436) (436) 

 
Of the total CFR, £67.456m relates to borrowing taken out with the Public Works Loan Board 
(PWLB) as part of the Housing Self Financing changes. 
 
 
2.3 Liability Benchmark 
 
A third and new prudential indicator for 2023/24 is the Liability Benchmark (LB).  The Council 
is required to estimate and measure the LB for the forthcoming financial year and the following 
two financial years, as a minimum. 

There are four components to the LB: - 

1. Existing loan debt outstanding: the Council’s existing loans that are still outstanding 
in future years.   

2. Loans CFR: this is calculated in accordance with the loans CFR definition in the 
Prudential Code and projected into the future based on approved prudential borrowing 
and planned MRP.  

3. Net loans requirement: this will show the Council’s gross loan debt less treasury 
management investments at the last financial year-end, projected into the future and 

Page 58



  APPENDIX B 

based on its approved prudential borrowing, planned MRP and any other major cash 
flows forecast.  

4. Liability benchmark (or gross loans requirement): this equals net loans requirement 
plus short-term liquidity allowance.  

 

 
 
2.4 Core funds and expected investment balances 
 
The application of resources (capital receipts, reserves etc.) to either finance capital 
expenditure or other budget decisions to support the revenue budget will have an ongoing 
impact on investments unless resources are supplemented each year from new sources 
(asset sales etc.).  A full analysis will be provided in the budget setting report.   
 
2.5 Minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy statement 
 
Under Regulation 27 of the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) 
Regulations 2003, where the Council has financed capital expenditure by borrowing it is 
required to make a provision each year through a revenue charge (MRP). 
 
The Council is required to calculate a prudent provision of MRP which ensures that the 
outstanding debt liability is repaid over a period that is reasonably commensurate with that 
over which the capital expenditure provides benefits. The MRP Guidance (2018) gives four 
ready-made options for calculating MRP, but the Council can use any other reasonable basis 
that it can justify as prudent. 
 
The MRP policy statement requires full council approval in advance of each financial year. 
 
The Council is recommended to approve the following MRP Statement: 
 

For all unsupported borrowing from 1 April 2008 the MRP policy will be: 
 

• Asset life method (straight line) – MRP will be based on the estimated life of the 
assets, in accordance with the regulations (this option must be applied for any 
expenditure capitalised under a Capitalisation Direction); 

Page 59



  APPENDIX B 

 
This option provides for a reduction in the borrowing need over approximately the asset’s life.  
 
Capital expenditure incurred during 2023/24 will not be subject to an MRP charge until 
2024/25, or in the year after the asset becomes operational. 
 
The Council will apply the asset life method for any expenditure capitalised under a 
Capitalisation Direction. 
 
There is no requirement on the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) to make a minimum revenue 
provision but there is a requirement for a charge for depreciation to be made. 
 
MRP in respect of assets acquired under Finance Leases or PFI will be charged at an amount 
equal to the principal element of the annual repayment. 
 
Repayments included in finance leases are applied as MRP. 
 
Any loans issued or equity investment made in Welland Homes and South Holland Local 
Housing Company which are classed as capital expenditure will increase the Council’s CFR.  
The Council will earmark the proceeds from the repayment of the loans or sale of equity 
interest to reduce the CFR and therefore will apply a nominal MRP charge of £1 on such loans 
and equity investments. This policy will be reviewed annually to ensure the approach remains 
prudent based on the Company’s financial position. If it is deemed that an additional charge 
is required to ensure prudence a voluntary revenue provision (VRP) will be made.  
 
Appropriation of Assets – Where assets do not change ownership and borrowing is not 
required; the Council will not apply MRP on the asset value transferred. 
 
The Item 8 Credit and Item 8 Debit (General) Determination 2017 (as updated by the Limits 
on Indebtedness (Revocation) Determination 2018) requires that the HRA CFR  is reduced by 
the amount of any capital receipt arising from the disposal of an interest in housing land  (other 
than Right to Buy sales or stock transfers) that was used to meet capital expenditure on any 
asset for which the Council does not have a duty to account for in the HRA, unless the 
expenditure relates to either regeneration or affordable housing and in which case the 
reduction is not required.  
 
The effect of these provisions is that the HRA is compensated for the use of HRA capital 
receipts by a transfer of an equivalent amount of its underlying need to borrow from the HRA 
CFR to the General Fund CFR. Where this is the case, as this does not give rise to either new 
capital expenditure or serve to increase the aggregate CFR for the Council, additional MRP 
will not be charged to the General Fund. 
 
MRP Overpayments - Under the MRP guidance, charges can be made in excess of the 
statutory MRP known as voluntary revenue provision (VRP). 
 
VRP can be reclaimed in later years if deemed necessary or prudent.  In order for these 
amounts to be reclaimed for use in the budget, this policy must disclose the cumulative 
overpayment made each year. 
 
At the end of the 2021/22 financial year the Council had made no VRP contributions. If this 
changes during the 2022/23 financial year it will be reported in the Annual Treasury Report. 
  

Page 60



  APPENDIX B 

3  BORROWING 

 
The capital expenditure plans set out in Section 2 provide details of the service activity of the 
Council.  The treasury management function ensures that the Council’s cash is organised in 
accordance with the relevant professional codes, so that sufficient cash is available to meet 
this service activity and the Council’s capital strategy.  This will involve both the organisation 
of the cash flow and, where capital plans require, the organisation of appropriate borrowing 
facilities.  The strategy covers the relevant treasury / prudential indicators, the current and 
projected debt positions and the Annual Investment Strategy. 
 
3.1 Current portfolio position 
 
The overall treasury management portfolio as at 31 March 2022 and the position as at 31 
December 2022 are shown below for both borrowing and investments.  
 
 

 
 
  

Actual Actual Current Current

31/03/22 31/03/22 31/12/22 31/12/22

Treasury Investments £000 %  £000 %  

Banks 37,133 78% 15,701 34%

Building Societies - Rated 0 0% 0 0%

Local Authorities 0 0% 0 0%

DMADF (H.M.Treasury) 0 0% 0 0%

Money Market Funds 5,600 12% 8,900 19%

Certificates of Deposit 5,000 10% 22,000 47%

Total Managed In House 47,733 100% 46,601 100%

Bond Funds 0 0% 0 0%

Property Funds 0 0% 0 0%

Total Managed Externally 0 0% 0 0%

Total Treasury Investments 47,733 100% 46,601 100%

Treasury External Borrowing

Local Authorities 0 0% 0 0%

PWLB 67,456 100% 67,456 100%

LOBOs 0 0% 0 0%

Total External Borrowing 67,456 100% 67,456 100%

Net Treasury Investments / (Borrowing) -19,723 0 -20,855 0

TREASURY PORTFOLIO

Page 61



  APPENDIX B 

The Council’s forward projections for borrowing are summarised below. The table shows the 
actual external debt, against the underlying capital borrowing need, (the Capital Financing 
Requirement - CFR), highlighting any over or under borrowing.  
 

£’000’s 2022/23 
Estimate 

2023/24 
Estimate 

2024/25 
Estimate 

2025/26 
Estimate 

2026/27 
Estimate 

2027/28 
Estimate 

Debt at 1 April  67,456 67,456 67,456 67,456 67,456 67,456 

Expected change in Debt 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Other long-term liabilities 
(OLTL) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Expected change in OLTL 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Actual gross debt at 31 
March  

67,456 67,456 67,456 67,456 67,456 67,456 

The Capital Financing 
Requirement 

82,352 86,054 85,682 85,305 84,869 84,433 

Under / (over) borrowing 14,896 18,598 18,226 17,849 17,413 16,977 

 
Within the range of prudential indicators, there are a number of key indicators to ensure that 
the Council operates its activities within well-defined limits.  One of these is that the Council 
needs to ensure that its gross debt does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of the 
CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for 2023/24 and the 
following two financial years. This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future 
years, but ensures that borrowing is not undertaken for revenue or speculative purposes. 
 
The Section 151 Officer reports that the Council complied with this prudential indicator in the 
current year and does not envisage difficulties for the future.  This view takes into account 
current commitments, existing plans, and the proposals in this budget report. 
 
3.2 Treasury Indicators: limits to borrowing activity 
 
The operational boundary - This is the limit beyond which external debt is not normally 
expected to exceed.  In most cases, this would be a similar figure to the CFR, but may be 
lower or higher depending on the levels of actual debt and the ability to fund under-borrowing 
by other cash resources. 
 

Operational boundary 
£’000’s 

2022/23 
Estimate 

2023/24 
Estimate 

2024/25 
Estimate 

2025/26 
Estimate 

2026/26 
Estimate 

2027/28 
Estimate 

Debt 86,000 86,000 86,000 86,000 86,000 86,000 

Other long term liabilities 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Total 87,000 87,000 87,000 87,000 87,000 87,000 

 
The authorised limit for external debt – This is a key prudential indicator and represents a 
control on the maximum level of borrowing.  This represents a legal limit beyond which external 
debt is prohibited, and this limit needs to be set or revised by the Full Council.  It reflects the 
level of external debt, which while not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not 
sustainable in the longer term.   
 

1. This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act 
2003. The Government retains an option to control either the total of all councils’ plans, 
or those of a specific council, although this power has never been exercised. 
 

Page 62



  APPENDIX B 

2. As part of the formal governance process, the Council approves the following indicators, 
as shown below: 

 

 
 
3.3 Prospects for interest rates 
 
The Council has appointed Link Group as its treasury advisor and part of their service is to 
assist the Council to formulate a view on interest rates. Link provided the following forecasts 
on 19 December 2022.  These are forecasts for certainty rates, gilt yields plus 80 bps. 
 

 

 

Additional notes by Link on this forecast table: - 

Our central forecast for interest rates was updated on 19 December and reflected a view that 
the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) would be keen to further demonstrate its anti-inflation 
credentials by delivering a succession of rate increases.  Bank Rate stands at 3.5% currently 
but is expected to reach a peak of 4.5% in H1 2023. 

Further down the road, we anticipate the Bank of England will be keen to loosen monetary 
policy when the worst of the inflationary pressures are behind us – but that timing will be one 
of fine judgment: cut too soon, and inflationary pressures may well build up further; cut too 
late and any downturn or recession may be prolonged. 

The Consumer Price Index (CPI) measure of inflation looks to have peaked at 11.1% in Q4 
2022 (currently 10.7%).  Despite the cost-of-living squeeze that is still taking shape, the Bank 
of England will want to see evidence that wages are not spiralling upwards in what is evidently 
a very tight labour market. 

Regarding the plan to sell £10bn of gilts back into the market each quarter (Quantitative 
Tightening (QT)), this has started and will focus on the short, medium and longer end of the 
curve in equal measure, now that the short-lived effects of the Truss/Kwarteng unfunded dash 
for growth policy are firmly in the rear-view mirror. 

In the upcoming months, our forecasts will be guided not only by economic data releases and 
clarifications from the MPC over its monetary policies and the Government over its fiscal 
policies, but the on-going conflict between Russia and Ukraine.  (More recently, the 
heightened tensions between China/Taiwan/US also have the potential to have a wider and 
negative economic impact.) 

On the positive side, consumers are still estimated to be sitting on over £160bn of excess 
savings left over from the pandemic so that will cushion some of the impact of the above 

Authorised limit  
£’000’s 

2022/23 
Estimate 

2023/24 
Estimate 

2024/25 
Estimate 

2025/26 
Estimate 

2026/27 
Estimate 

2027/28 
Estimate 

Debt 90,000 90,000 90,000 90,000 90,000 90,000 

Other long term liabilities 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 

Total 91,000 91,000 91,000 91,000 91,000 91,000 

Page 63



  APPENDIX B 

challenges.   However, most of those are held by more affluent people whereas lower income 
families already spend nearly all their income on essentials such as food, energy and 
rent/mortgage payments.  

 

PWLB RATES 

• The yield curve movements have become less volatile of late and PWLB 5 to 50 years 

Certainty Rates are, generally, in the range of 4.10% to 4.80%.   

• We view the markets as having built in, already, nearly all the effects on gilt yields of 

the likely increases in Bank Rate and the elevated inflation outlook.  

The balance of risks to the UK economy: - 

• The overall balance of risks to economic growth in the UK is to the downside.   
 

Downside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB rates include: 

• Labour and supply shortages prove more enduring and disruptive and depress 
economic activity (accepting that in the near-term this is also an upside risk to inflation and, 
thus, rising gilt yields).  

• The Bank of England acts too quickly, or too far, over the next two years to raise Bank 
Rate and causes UK economic growth, and increases in inflation, to be weaker than we 
currently anticipate.  

• UK / EU trade arrangements – if there was a major impact on trade flows and financial 
services due to complications or lack of co-operation in sorting out significant remaining 
issues.  

• Geopolitical risks, for example in Ukraine/Russia, China/Taiwan/US, Iran, North 
Korea and Middle Eastern countries, which could lead to increasing safe-haven flows.  

 

Upside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB rates include: 

• The Bank of England is too slow in its pace and strength of increases in Bank Rate and, 
therefore, allows inflationary pressures to build up too strongly and for a longer period within 
the UK economy, which then necessitates Bank Rate staying higher for longer than we 
currently project or even necessitates a further series of increases in Bank Rate. 

• The Government acts too quickly to cut taxes and/or increases expenditure in light of the 
cost-of-living squeeze.  

• The pound weakens because of a lack of confidence in the UK Government’s fiscal 
policies, resulting in investors pricing in a risk premium for holding UK sovereign debt.  

• Longer term US treasury yields rise strongly and pull gilt yields up higher than 
currently forecast. 

• Projected gilt issuance, inclusive of natural maturities and QT, could be too much 
for the markets to comfortably digest without higher yields consequently. 

 

Borrowing advice: Our long-term (beyond 10 years) forecast for Bank Rate stands at 2.5%. 
As all PWLB certainty rates are currently above this level, borrowing strategies will need to be 
reviewed in that context.  Better value can generally be obtained at the shorter end of the 
curve and short-dated fixed Local Authority (LA) to LA monies should be considered. 
Temporary borrowing rates are likely, however, to remain near Bank Rate and may also prove 
attractive whilst the market waits for inflation, and therein gilt yields, to drop back later in 2023.  

Our suggested budgeted earnings rates for investments up to about three months’ duration in 
each financial year are as follows: - 

 

Page 64



  APPENDIX B 

Average expected earnings in each year % 

2022/23 (remainder) 4.00% 

2023/24 4.40% 

2024/25 3.30% 

2025/26 2.60% 

2026/27 2.50% 

Years 6 to 10 2.80% 

Years 10+ 2.80% 

 
 
As there are so many variables at this time, caution must be exercised in respect of all interest 
rate forecasts.   
 
Our interest rate forecast for Bank Rate is in steps of 25 basis points (bps), whereas PWLB 
forecasts have been rounded to the nearest 10 bps and are central forecasts within bands of 
+ / - 25 bps. Naturally, we continue to monitor events and will update our forecasts as and 
when appropriate. 
 
(End of Link Group commentary) 
 
3.4 Borrowing Strategy  

The Council is currently maintaining an under-borrowed position.  This means that the capital 
borrowing need, (the Capital Financing Requirement), has not been fully funded with loan debt as 
cash supporting the Council’s reserves, balances and cash flow has been used as a temporary 
measure. This strategy is prudent as medium and longer dated borrowing rates are expected to fall 
from their current levels once prevailing inflation concerns are addressed by tighter near-term 
monetary policy.  That is, Bank Rate increases over the remainder of 2022 and the first half of 2023. 

Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution will be adopted with 
the 2023/24 treasury operations. The Section 151 Officer will monitor interest rates in financial 
markets and adopt a pragmatic approach to changing circumstances: 

 
• if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in borrowing rates, then 

borrowing will be postponed. 
 
• if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE in borrowing rates than 

that currently forecast, fixed rate funding will be drawn whilst interest rates are lower than 
they are projected to be in the next few years. 

 

Any decisions will be reported to the appropriate decision-making body at the next available 
opportunity. 

3.5 Policy on borrowing in advance of need  

The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs purely in order to profit from the 
investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow in advance will be within forward 

Page 65



  APPENDIX B 

approved Capital Financing Requirement estimates and will be considered carefully to ensure that 
value for money can be demonstrated and that the Council can ensure the security of such funds.  
 
Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to prior appraisal and 
subsequent reporting through the mid-year or annual reporting mechanism.  

3.6 Debt rescheduling 

Rescheduling of current borrowing in our debt portfolio is unlikely to occur as there is still a 
large difference between premature redemption rates and new borrowing rates. 
 
If rescheduling is to be undertaken, it will be reported to the Cabinet, at the earliest meeting following 
its action. 
 
3.7 New Financial Institutions as a Source of Borrowing and / or Types of Borrowing 

Currently the PWLB Certainty Rate is set at gilts + 80 basis points.  However, consideration 
may still need to be given to sourcing funding from the following sources for the following 
reasons: 

• Local authorities (primarily shorter dated maturities out to 3 years or so – generally still 
cheaper than the Certainty Rate). 
 

• Financial institutions (primarily insurance companies and pension funds but also some 
banks, out of forward dates where the objective is to avoid a “cost of carry” or to 
achieve refinancing certainty over the next few years). 

Our advisors will keep us informed as to the relative merits of each of these alternative funding 
sources. 

3.8 Approved sources of long- and short-term borrowing 

On Balance Sheet Fixed Variable 
   

PWLB • • 

UK Municipal Bond Agency  • • 

Local Authorities • • 

Banks • • 

Pension Funds • • 

Insurance Companies • • 

UK Infrastructure Bank • • 

Market (long-term) • • 

Market (temporary) • • 

Market (LOBOs) • • 

Stock Issues • • 

Local Temporary • • 

Local Bonds • 

Local Authority Bills                                                                    • • 

Overdraft  • 

Negotiable Bonds • • 

Internal (capital receipts & revenue balances) • • 

Commercial Paper • 

Medium Term Notes •  

Finance Leases • • 

Page 66



  APPENDIX B 

4. ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY  

4.1 Investment policy – management of risk 

 

The Department of Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC - this was formerly the 

Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG)) and CIPFA have 

extended the meaning of ‘investments’ to include both financial and non-financial investments.  

This report deals solely with treasury (financial) investments, (as managed by the treasury 

management team).  Non-financial investments, essentially the purchase of income yielding 

assets and service investments, are covered in the Capital Strategy, (a separate report). 

 

The Council’s investment policy has regard to the following: 

 

• DLUHC’s Guidance on Local Government Investments (“the Guidance”) 

• CIPFA Treasury Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral 

Guidance Notes 2021 (“the Code”)  

• CIPFA Treasury Management Guidance Notes 2021   

 

The Council’s funds are managed by PSPSL with reference to a detailed cash flow forecast 

on a daily basis for the current year. Protocols are in place to govern the movement of funds 

within specific limits.  

 

The Council’s investment priorities will be security first, portfolio liquidity second and then yield, 

(return). The Council will aim to achieve the optimum return (yield) on its investments 

commensurate with proper levels of security and liquidity and within the Council’s risk appetite. 

 

In the current economic climate, it is considered appropriate to maintain a degree of liquidity 

to cover cash flow needs but to also consider “laddering” investments for periods up to 12 

months with high credit rated financial institutions, whilst investment rates remain elevated, as 

well as wider range fund options. 

  

The above guidance from the DLUHC and CIPFA place a high priority on the management of 

risk. This Council has adopted a prudent approach to managing risk and defines its risk 

appetite by the following means: - 

 

• Minimum acceptable credit criteria are applied in order to generate a list of highly 

creditworthy counterparties.  This also enables diversification and thus avoidance of 

concentration risk. The key ratings used to monitor counterparties are the short term 

and long-term ratings.  

 

• Other information: ratings will not be the sole determinant of the quality of an institution; 

it is important to continually assess and monitor the financial sector on both a micro and 

macro basis and in relation to the economic and political environments in which 

institutions operate. The assessment will also take account of information that reflects 

the opinion of the markets. To achieve this consideration the Council will engage with 

its advisors to maintain a monitor on market pricing such as “credit default swaps” 

(CDS) and overlay that information on top of the credit ratings.  

 

• Other information sources used will include the financial press, share price and other 

such information pertaining to the financial sector in order to establish the most robust 

scrutiny process on the suitability of potential investment counterparties. 

Page 67



  APPENDIX B 

 

• This Council has defined the list of types of investment instruments that the treasury 

management team are authorised to use. There are two lists in Appendix 5.3 under the 

categories of ‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’ investments.  

 

• Specified investments are those with a high level of credit quality and subject to a 

maturity limit of one year or have less than a year left to run to maturity if originally 

they were originally classified as being non-specified investments solely due to the 

maturity period exceeding one year. 

 

• Non-specified investments are those with less high credit quality, may be for 

periods in excess of one year, and/or are more complex instruments which require 

greater consideration by members and officers before being authorised for use. 

 

• Non-specified and loan investments limits. The Council has determined that it will 

limit the maximum total exposure to non-specified investments to £5m of the total 

investment portfolio, (see paragraph 4.3). 

 

• Lending limits, The maximum total investments to any individual financial institution or 

its parent group is £5m. The maximum limit for individual money market funds is £10m. 

There is no maximum limit for deposits with the UK Debt Management Agency Deposit 

Facility (DMADF) as this is effectively the UK Government. The maximum permitted 

duration of investments for each institution will be determined in accordance with 

paragraph 4.2. 

 

• Transaction limits are set for each type of investment in paragraph 4.2. 

 

• This Council will set a limit for the amount of its investments which are invested for 

longer than 365 days, (see paragraph 4.4).   

 

• Investments will only be placed with counterparties from countries with a specified 

minimum sovereign rating, (see paragraph 4.3). 

 

• PSPSL has engaged external consultants, (see paragraph 1.5), to provide expert 

advice on how to optimise an appropriate balance of security, liquidity and yield, given 

the risk appetite of this Council in the context of the expected level of cash balances and 

need for liquidity throughout the year. 

 

• All investments will be denominated in sterling. 

 

• As a result of the change in accounting standards for 2022/23 under IFRS 9, this Council will 

consider the implications of investment instruments which could result in an adverse 

movement in the value of the amount invested and resultant charges at the end of the year 

to the General Fund. In November 2018, the Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local 

Government (MHCLG), concluded a consultation for a temporary override to allow English 

local authorities time to adjust their portfolio of all pooled investments by announcing a 

statutory override to delay implementation of IFRS 9 for five years ending 31.3.23. At the 

current juncture it has not been determined whether a further extension to the over-ride will 

be agreed by Government.   

Page 68



  APPENDIX B 

 

However, this Council will also pursue value for money in treasury management and will 

monitor the yield from investment income against appropriate benchmarks for investment 

performance, (see paragraph 4.5). Regular monitoring of investment performance will be 

carried out during the year. 

 

Changes in risk management policy from last year. 

The above criteria are unchanged from last year. 

 

4.2 Creditworthiness Policy 

 

This Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by the Link Group.  This service 

employs a sophisticated modelling approach utilising credit ratings from the three main credit 

rating agencies - Fitch, Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s.  The credit ratings of counterparties 

are supplemented with the following overlays:  

 

• “watches” and “outlooks” from credit rating agencies; 

• CDS spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings; 

• sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy countries. 

 

This modelling approach combines credit ratings, and any assigned Watches and Outlooks in 

a weighted scoring system which is then combined with an overlay of CDS spreads. The end 

product of this is a series of colour coded bands which indicate the relative creditworthiness 

of counterparties.  These colour codes are used by the Council to determine the suggested 

duration for investments.   The Council will therefore use counterparties within the following 

durational bands:  

 

• Yellow  5 years* 

• Dark Pink 5 years for Ultra-Short Dated Bond Funds with a credit score of 1.25  

• Light Pink 5 years for Ultra-Short Dated Bond Funds with a credit score of 1.5 

• Purple   2 years 

• Blue   1 year (only applies to nationalised or semi nationalised UK Banks) 

• Orange  1 year 

• Red   6 months 

• Green   100 days  

• No colour  not to be used  

 

* Please note: the yellow colour category is for UK Government debt, or its equivalent, money 

market funds and collateralised deposits where the collateral is UK Government debt. 

 

The Link creditworthiness service uses a wider array of information other than just primary 

ratings. Furthermore, by using a risk weighted scoring system, it does not give undue 

preponderance to just one agency’s ratings. 

  

Typically the minimum credit ratings criteria the Council uses will be a Short Term rating (Fitch 

or equivalents) of F1 and a Long Term rating of A-.  There may be occasions when the 

counterparty ratings from one rating agency are marginally lower than these ratings but may 

still be used.  In these instances consideration will be given to the whole range of ratings 

available, or other topical market information, to support their use. 

Page 69



  APPENDIX B 

  

All credit ratings will be monitored daily. PSPSL is alerted to changes to ratings of all three 

agencies through its use of the Link creditworthiness service. 

 

• if a downgrade results in the counterparty / investment scheme no longer meeting the 

Council’s minimum criteria, its further use as a new investment will be withdrawn 

immediately. 

 

• in addition to the use of credit ratings PSPSL will be advised of information in movements 

in CDS spreads against the iTraxx European Financials benchmark and other market 

data on a daily basis provided exclusively to it by Link.  Extreme market movements may 

result in downgrade of an institution or removal from the Council’s lending list. 

 

Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external service.  In addition, this Council 

will also use market data and market information, as well as information on any external 

support for banks to help support its decision making process. 

 

Creditworthiness 

 

Significant levels of downgrades to Short and Long-Term credit ratings have not materialised 

since the crisis in March 2020. In the main, where they did change, any alterations were limited 

to Outlooks. However, more recently the UK sovereign debt rating has been placed on 

Negative Outlook by the three major rating agencies in the wake of the Truss/Kwarteng 

unfunded tax-cuts policy.  Although the Sunak/Hunt government has calmed markets, the 

outcome of the rating agency reviews is unknown at present, but it is possible the UK 

sovereign debt rating will be downgraded.  Accordingly, when setting minimum sovereign debt 

ratings, this Council will not set a minimum rating for the UK. 

 

CDS Prices 

 

Although bank CDS prices, (these are market indicators of credit risk), spiked upwards during 

the days of the Truss/Kwarteng government, they have returned to more average levels since 

then. However, sentiment can easily shift, so it will remain important to undertake continual 

monitoring of all aspects of risk and return in the current circumstances. Link monitor CDS 

prices as part of their creditworthiness service to local authorities and the Council has access 

to this information via its Link-provided Passport portal. 

 

4.3 Limits 
 
Due care will be taken to consider the exposure of the Council’s total investment portfolio to 

non-specified investments, countries, groups and sectors.   

• Non-specified investment limit. The Council has determined that it will limit the 

maximum total exposure to non-specified investments to £5m of the total investment 

portfolio. 

 

• Country limit. The Council has determined that it will only use approved counterparties 

from the United Kingdom or countries with a minimum sovereign credit rating of AA- from 

Fitch (or equivalent). The list of countries that qualify using this credit criteria as at the 

date of this report are shown in Appendix 5.4.  This list will be added to, or deducted 

from, by officers should ratings change in accordance with this policy. 

Page 70



  APPENDIX B 

 

• Other limits. In addition: 

• no more than £5m will be placed with any non-UK country at any time; 

• limits in place above will apply to a group of companies; 

• sector limits will be monitored regularly for appropriateness 

 

4.4 Investment strategy 

In-House Funds. Investments will be made with reference to the core balance and cash flow 

requirements and the outlook for short-term interest rates (i.e., rates for investments up to 12 

months). Greater returns are usually obtainable by investing for longer periods.  The current 

shape of the yield curve suggests that is the case at present, but there is the prospect of Bank 

Rate peaking in the first half of 2023 and possibly reducing as early as the latter part of 2023 

so an agile investment strategy would be appropriate to optimise returns.  

 

Accordingly, while some cash balances are required in order to manage the ups and downs 

of cash flow, where cash sums can be identified that could be invested for longer periods, the 

value to be obtained from longer-term investments will be carefully assessed. 

Investment returns expectations.  

The current forecast shown in paragraph 3.3, includes a forecast for Bank Rate to reach 4.5% in 
Q2 2023.  
 
The suggested budgeted investment earnings rates for returns on investments placed for periods 
up to about three months during each financial year are as follows:  
 

• 2022/23 (remainder) 3.95% 

• 2023/24    4.40% 

• 2024/25    3.30%  

• 2025/26   2.60% 

• 2025/26   2.50% 

• Years 6+   2.80% 

As there are so many variables at this time, caution must be exercised in respect of all interest rate 

forecasts.   

For its cash flow generated balances, the Council will seek to utilise its business reserve instant 

access and notice accounts, money market funds and short-dated deposits, (overnight to 100 

days), to benefit from the compounding of interest.  

 

Investment treasury indicator and limit - total principal funds invested for greater than 365 

days. These limits are set with regard to the Council’s liquidity requirements and to reduce the 

need for early sale of an investment and are based on the availability of funds after each year-

end. 

  

Page 71



  APPENDIX B 

As part of the formal governance process, the Council approves the treasury indicator and 

limit, as follows: 

 

£’000 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 

Principal sums invested for 
longer than 365 days 

 
5,000 

 
5,000 

 
5,000 

 
5,000 

 
5,000 

Current investments as at 
31/12/22 in excess of 1 year 
maturing in each year 

 
 
0 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 

Loans to and equity purchases in Welland Homes do not count towards this limit.  

 

4.5 Investment risk benchmark 

 

The Council has not adopted any formal benchmarks in this area. Officers believe that 

decisions on counterparties and maximum investment levels are adequate to monitor the 

current and trend position and will amend the operational strategy to manage risk as conditions 

change.   

 

This Council will use an investment benchmark to assess the investment performance of its 

investment portfolio of the 3 month Sterling Overnight Index Average (SONIA) rate.  

 

4.6 End of year investment report 

 

At the end of the financial year, the Council will report on its investment activity as part of its 

Annual Treasury Report. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 72



  APPENDIX B 

5.  APPENDICES 

5.1 Prudential and treasury indicators 
 

5.2 Interest rate forecasts 

5.3 Treasury management practice 1 – credit and counterparty risk management  

5.4 Approved countries for investments 

5.5 Treasury management scheme of delegation 

5.6 The treasury management role of the Section 151 Officer 

 

 

 

Page 73



22 
 
 

5.1 THE CAPITAL PRUDENTIAL AND TREASURY INDICATORS 2022/23 – 2027/28  

The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury management 
activity. The output of the capital expenditure plans is reflected in the prudential 
indicators, which are designed to assist members’ overview and confirm capital 
expenditure plans. 

5.1.1 Capital expenditure (subject to change during the budget setting 
process) 

 
Capital expenditure 
£m 

2022/23 
Estimate 

2023/24 
Estimate 

2024/25 
Estimate 

2025/26 
Estimate 

2026/27 
Estimate 

2027/28 
Estimate 

General Fund 11,418 6,525 1,896 74 19 19 

HRA 9,660 13,509 16,911 11,016 11,352 2,000 

Total 21,078 20,034 18,807 11,090 11,371 2,019 

 

5.1.2 Affordability prudential indicators (subject to change during the budget 
setting process) 

The previous sections cover the overall capital and control of borrowing prudential 
indicators, but within this framework prudential indicators are required to assess the 
affordability of the capital investment plans.   These provide an indication of the impact 
of the capital investment plans on the Council’s overall finances.  The Council is asked 
to approve the following indicators: 

a. Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream 

This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital, (borrowing and other long-
term obligation costs net of investment income), against the net revenue stream. 
 

% 2022/23 
Estimate 

2023/24 
Estimate 

2024/25 
Estimate 

2025/26 
Estimate 

2026/27 
Estimate 

2027/28 
Estimate 

Non-HRA (7.24) (9.15) (5.00) (3.26) (2.64) (2.64) 

HRA 36.23 34.31 35.81 36.18 35.61 35.61 
Total 18.81 16.66 19.22 20.21 20.34 20.34 

 
The estimates of financing costs include current commitments and the proposals in 
this budget report. 
 
b. HRA ratios  
 

 2022/23 
Estimate 

2023/24 
Estimate 

2024/25 
Estimate 

2025/26 
Estimate 

2026/27 
Estimate 

2027/28 
Estimate 

HRA debt  £m 67.456 67.456 67.456 67.456 67.456 67.456 

HRA revenues 
£m 

15.904 16.678 17.116 17.520 17.940 18.360 

Ratio of debt to 
revenues % 

424.14 404.46 394.11 385.02 376.01 367.41 

 
 

Page 74



 
 

 

 

23 

 
 

 2022/23 
Estimate 

2023/24 
Estimate 

2024/25 
Estimate 

2025/26 
Estimate 

2026/27 
Estimate 

2027/28 
Estimate 

HRA debt £m 67.456 67.456 67.456 67.456 67.456 67.456 

Number of 
HRA dwellings 

3,734 3,751 3,752 3,748 3,764 3,770 

Debt per 
dwelling £ 

18,065 17,983 17,979 17,950 17,921 17,893 

 
 
5.1.3 Maturity structure of borrowing 
 
These gross limits are set to reduce the Council’s exposure to large fixed rate sums 
falling due for refinancing, and are required for upper and lower limits.  The Council is 
asked to approve the following treasury indicators and limits: 
 

Maturity structure of fixed interest rate borrowing 2023/24 

 Lower Upper 

Under 12 months 0% 100% 

12 months to 2 years 0% 100% 

2 years to 5 years 0% 100% 

5 years to 10 years 0% 100% 

10 years to 20 years  0% 100% 

20 years to 30 years  0% 100% 

30 years to 40 years  0% 100% 

40 years to 50 years  0% 100% 

Maturity structure of variable interest rate borrowing 2023/24 

 Lower Upper 

Under 12 months 0% 100% 

12 months to 2 years 0% 100% 

2 years to 5 years 0% 100% 

5 years to 10 years 0% 100% 

10 years to 20 years  0% 100% 

20 years to 30 years  0% 100% 

30 years to 40 years  0% 100% 

40 years to 50 years  0% 100% 

 
 

 

Page 75



  APPENDIX B 

 

 

5.2 APPENDIX: Interest Rate Forecasts 2022 – 2025.  

  

PWLB forecasts are based on PWLB certainty rates.

P
age 76



  APPENDIX B 

 

 

APPENDIX 5.3 Treasury Management Practice (TMP1) – Credit and Counterparty Risk 

Management 

 

SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS: All such investments will be sterling denominated, with 

maturities up to maximum of 1 year, meeting the minimum ‘high’ quality criteria where 

applicable. (Non-specified investments which would be specified investments apart from 

originally being for a period longer than 12 months, will be classified as being specified once 

the remaining period to maturity falls to under twelve months.) 

 

 
Minimum ‘High’ Credit 

Criteria 
Use 

Debt Management Agency Deposit 
Facility  

N/A 
In-house (No 
maximum limit) 

Term Deposits - UK Local Authorities N/A In-house 

Term Deposits – banks and building 
societies  

Minimum colour of 
green on our external 
treasury advisers credit 
rating matrix 

In-house 

Treasury Bills UK sovereign rating In-house 

Certificates of Deposit or Corporate 
Bonds issued by banks and building 
societies 

Minimum colour of 
green on our external 
treasury advisers credit 
rating matrix 

In-house 

Bonds issued by multilateral 
development banks 

AAA 
In-house buy and 
hold 

Money Market Funds – CCLA (Church, 
Charities & Local Authority) 

AAA 
In-house (£10m 
limit for cash flow 
purposes) 

Money Market Funds  CNAV 

(Constant Net Asset Value) AAA In-house 

Money Market Funds  LVAV (Low 

Volatility Asset Value) AAA In-house 

Money Market Funds  VNAV 

(Variable Net Asset Value) AAA In-house 

 

Term deposits with nationalised banks and banks and building societies. 

 

 
Minimum Credit 
Criteria 

Use 
Max of total 
investments 

Max. 
maturity 
period 

UK  part 
nationalised banks 

Minimum colour of 
green on our external 
treasury advisers 
credit rating matrix 

In-
house  

£5m 1 year 

Banks part 
nationalised by AAA 
or AA- sovereign 
rating countries – 
non UK 

Minimum colour of 
green on our external 
treasury advisers 
credit rating matrix 

In-
house  

£5m 1 year 

Page 77



  APPENDIX B 

 

 

 

If forward deposits are to be made, the forward period plus the deal period should not exceed 

one year in aggregate.   

 

Accounting treatment of investments.  The accounting treatment may differ from the 

underlying cash transactions arising from investment decisions made by this Council. To 

ensure that the Council is protected from any adverse revenue impact, which may arise from 

these differences, we will review the accounting implications of new transactions before they 

are undertaken. 

 

NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS: These are any investments which do not meet the 

Specified Investment criteria.  A maximum of £5m may be held in aggregate in non-specified 

investments. 

 

Maturities of ANY period 

 

 
Minimum Credit 
Criteria 

Use 
Max %  of 
non-specified 
investments 

Max. 
maturity 
period 

Fixed Term Deposits with 
variable rate and variable 
maturities: -Structured 
deposits 

Sovereign rating  of 
AAA or  AA- and 
minimum colour of 
green on our 
external treasury 
advisers credit rating 
matrix 

In-house  100% 5 year 

UK Government Gilts UK sovereign rating 
In-house 
buy and 
hold 

100% 5 year 

Sovereign Bond issues 
(other than the UK govt.) 

AAA 
In-house 
buy and 
hold 

100% 5 year 

Bond issuance issued by a 
financial institution which is 
explicitly guaranteed by  
the UK Government  (e.g. 
National Rail)  

UK sovereign rating 
In-house 
buy and 
hold 

100% 5 year 

Collateralised Deposits 
(see note 1) 

UK  Sovereign 
rating  

In-house  100% 5 year 

 

 

Page 78



  APPENDIX B 

 

 

 

Note 1. as collateralised deposits are backed by collateral of AAA rated local authority Lender 
Option Borrower Option (LOBO)’s, this investment instrument is regarded as being a AAA rated 
investment as it is equivalent to lending to a local authority. 
 

Maturities in excess of 1 year 

 

 
Minimum Credit 
Criteria 

Use 

Max %  of 
non-
specified 
investments 

Max. 
maturity 
period 

Term Deposits – UK local 
authorities  

N/A 
In-
house 

100% 5 year 

Parish Councils (SHDC 
Community Reserve) 

N/A 
In-
house 

100% 15 Year 

Term Deposits – banks and 
building societies  

Sovereign rating  of 
AAA or  AA- and 
minimum colour of 
orange on our 
external treasury 
advisers credit 
rating matrix 

In-
house 

100% 5 year 

Certificates of Deposit 
issued by banks and 
building societies  

Sovereign rating  of 
AAA or  AA- and 
minimum colour of 
orange on our 
external treasury 
advisers credit 
rating matrix 

In-
house  

100% 5 year 

Corporate bonds issued by 
banks and building societies 

Sovereign rating  of 
AAA or  AA- and 
minimum colour of 
orange on our 
external treasury 
advisers credit 
rating matrix 

In-
house  

100% 5 year 

Collective Investment Schemes structured as Open Ended Investment Companies 
(OEICs): - 

 
Minimum Credit 
Criteria 

Use 
Max %  of 
non-specified 
investments 

Max. 
maturity 
period 

Ultra-Short Dated Bond 
Funds with a credit score 
of 1.25 

Long-term AAA 
volatility rating 
MR1+ 

In-house 100% 
1 month 
notice 
period 

Ultra-Short Dated Bond 
Funds with a credit score 
of 1.5 

Long-term AAA 
volatility rating 
MR1+ 

In-house 100% 
1 month 
notice 
period 

Bond Funds 
Long-term AAA 
volatility rating 
MR1+ 

In-house 100% 
1 month 
notice 
period 

Gilt Funds 
UK Sovereign 
Rating 

In-house 100% 
1 month 
notice 
period 

Page 79



  APPENDIX B 

 

 

Bonds issued by multilateral 
development banks 

AAA 
In-
house  

100% 5 year 

Collective Investment Schemes structured as Open Ended Investment Companies (OEICs) 

Gilt Fund  
In-
House 

£5m 
Separate 
approval 
required 

Corporate Bond Fund  
In-
House 

£5m 
Separate 
approval 
required 

 

Loans and investments with Welland Homes and South Holland Local Housing Company will not 
count towards the Non-Specified Investment limit. 
 
The maximum total investment to any individual financial institution or its parent group is £5m and 
the limit with Money Market Funds is £10m and the UK Debt Management Agency Deposit Facility 
(UK Government) which has no maximum limit. 
 
Lloyds Bank provides banking services to the Council and the above limits do not include the day 
to day balance in the Council’s current account. 
 
Whilst these are maximum limits, under normal circumstances the Section 151 Officer will ensure 
lower limits are maintained. The higher limits are required to allow flexibility in the movement of 
funds if a particular issue or circumstance arises e.g. global banking crisis. 
 
Environmental, Social and Governance Considerations 
 
The Council continues to develop its strategy in this area. 
 
The Council is interested in undertaking actions to reduce climate change and as an ethical 
investor will consider the environmental, social and governance issues. 
 
Officers are working with the Council’s external treasury advisors to establish how these 
issues can be taken into consideration when Link Group formulate their Suggested Credit List 
which is used by the Council. 
 
 
  

Page 80



  APPENDIX B 

 

 

APPENDIX 5.4 Approved countries for investments (as at 2/12/22) 
This list is based on those countries which have sovereign ratings of AA- or higher (we show 

the lowest rating from Fitch, Moody’s and S&P) and also, (except - at the time of writing - for 

Hong Kong, Norway and Luxembourg), have banks operating in sterling markets which have 

credit ratings of green or above in the Link credit worthiness service. 

Based on lowest available rating: 

 

AAA                      
• Australia 

• Denmark 

• Germany 

• Luxembourg 

• Netherlands 

• Norway 

• Singapore 

• Sweden 

• Switzerland 

 

AA+ 

• Canada 

• Finland  

• U.S.A. 

 

AA 

• Abu Dhabi (UAE) 

• France 

 

AA- 

• Belgium 

• Hong Kong 

• Qatar 

• U.K. 

 

 
  

Page 81



  APPENDIX B 

 

 

APPENDIX 5.5 - Treasury management scheme of delegation 

 

(i) Full council 

• receiving and reviewing reports on treasury management policies, practices and activities 

• approval of annual strategy. 

• approval of / amendments to the council’s adopted clauses, treasury management policy 
statement and treasury management practices 

• budget consideration and approval 

• approval of the division of responsibilities as contained in the Financial Regulations 

 

(ii) Cabinet and Governance & Audit Committee 

• reviewing the treasury management policy and procedures and making recommendations 
to the responsible body. 

• receiving and reviewing the annual strategy and making recommendations to the 
responsible body. 

• receiving and reviewing regular monitoring reports and acting on recommendations. 

 

SCRUTINY AND MONITORING 
  
Council delegates the scrutiny and monitoring of the Treasury Management function to the 
Governance and Audit Committee.  As a minimum they will receive quarterly reports and a Mid 
Term Treasury report on investment issues and performance. Training will be made available for 
members of the Governance and Audit Committee to ensure they have the necessary skills to 
undertake this role.  
 
The Governance and Audit Committee will also have access to professional and independent 
advice and support as required in order to undertake this role. 
  

Page 82



  APPENDIX B 

 

 

APPENDIX 5.6 - The treasury management role of the Section 151 Officer and deputy 

The Section 151 Officer responsibilities are as follows: 
 
• recommending clauses, treasury management policy/practices for approval, reviewing the 

same regularly, and monitoring compliance; 
• submitting regular treasury management policy reports; 
• submitting budgets and budget variations; 
• receiving and reviewing management information reports; 
• reviewing the performance of the treasury management function; 
• ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and the effective 

division of responsibilities within the treasury management function; 
• ensuring the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit; 
• recommending the appointment of external service providers; 
• preparation of a capital strategy to include capital expenditure, capital financing, non-

financial investments and treasury management, with a long term timeframe; 
• ensuring that the capital strategy is prudent, sustainable, affordable and prudent in the 

long term and provides value for money; 
• ensuring that due diligence has been carried out on all treasury and non-financial 

investments and is in accordance with the risk appetite of the Council; 
• ensure that the Council has appropriate legal powers to undertake expenditure on non-

financial assets and their financing; 
• ensuring the proportionality of all investments so that the Council does not undertake a 

level of investing which exposes the Council to an excessive level of risk compared to its 
financial resources; 

• ensuring that an adequate governance process is in place for the approval, monitoring 
and ongoing risk management of all non-financial investments and long term liabilities; 

• provision to members of a schedule of all non-treasury investments including material 
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, loans and financial guarantees ; 

• ensuring that members are adequately informed and understand the risk exposures taken 
on by the Council; 

• ensuring that the Council has adequate expertise, either in house or externally provided, 
to carry out the above; 

• creation of Treasury Management Practices which specifically deal with how non treasury 
investments will be carried out and managed, to include the following :- 
 
• Risk management (TMP1 and schedules), including investment and risk 

management criteria for any material non-treasury investment portfolios; 
• Performance measurement and management (TMP2 and schedules), including 

methodology and criteria for assessing the performance and success of non-treasury 
investments;      

• Decision making, governance and organisation (TMP5 and schedules), including a 
statement of the governance requirements for decision making in relation to non-
treasury investments; and arrangements to ensure that appropriate professional due 
diligence is carried out to support decision making; 

• Reporting and management information (TMP6 and schedules), including where and 
how often monitoring reports are taken; 

• Training and qualifications (TMP10 and schedules), including how the relevant 
knowledge and skills in relation to non-treasury investments will be arranged. 

  

Page 83



  APPENDIX B 

 

 

Public Sector Partnership Services Limited is responsible for the provision of: 
 

• treasury management strategy statements and practices for approval  

• regular treasury management policy reports 

• budget and budget variations 

• management information reports 

• adequate treasury management resources and skills, and effective division of 
responsibilities within the treasury management function, and; 

• arranging the appointment of external treasury management advisors.  

 

Where the use of particular instant access accounts, notice accounts and money market 
funds has been approved by the Section 151 Officer, PSPSL treasury officers have delegated 
authority to withdraw and deposit funds within the agreed limits contained in this strategy. 

 

Page 84



 

REPORT TO: Governance and Audit Committee 

DATE: Thursday, 19 January 2023 

SUBJECT: 

PURPOSE:  

Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme 

To set out the Work Programme of the Governance and Audit 

Committee 

KEY DECISION: N/A 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Portfolio Holder for Finance, Commercialisation & Partnerships 

REPORT OF: 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

Assistant Director – Finance – Samantha Knowles 

Andrea Tait – Democratic Services Officer 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: N/A  

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 

SUMMARY 

This report sets out the Work Programme of the Governance and Audit Committee and 
recommends that the Committee considers the Work Programme and identifies any additional 
items to be added to the Programme. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Committee gives consideration to the content of this report and identifies any 
issues for discussion. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To allow Committee members to feed into the Work Programme on a regular basis, to ensure 
that it stays relevant and up to date. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

Do nothing 

 

Page 85

Agenda Item 8.



1. BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee regularly considers a variety of reports from Internal 

Audit, External Audit and the Section 151 Officer. 

 

1.2 Many of these reports are considered at regular intervals, the majority being annually, half-

yearly or quarterly. 

 

1.3 In addition to these reports, the Committee also considers issues on an ad-hoc basis with 

some reports arising from consideration of items at previous meetings. 

 

 

2. REPORT 

 

2.1 Attached at Appendix A to this report is the Work Programme for the Governance and 

Audit Committee. It lays out the meeting dates for the 2022/23 municipal year. Alongside 

each of these meeting dates are issues considered by the Committee on a regular basis 

together with the author of the report, its purpose and whether it is mandatory, and the 

frequency with which it is considered. 

 

2.2 It has been agreed that this Work Programme be a regular item for consideration on the 

Committee’s agenda, thus creating a formal document laying out the work of the 

Committee in a clear, structured, and organised way. 

 

2.3 The attached document contains items considered on a regular basis, and also any ad hoc 

issues as and when they arise, for example, issues raised at a meeting to be covered at a 

future meeting, and any one-off issues.  

 

2.4 Attached at Appendix B is a schedule of training that has been undertaken since 2019, and a 

list of suggested future topics for training.  This was considered at the meeting of the 

Committee on 17 March 2022, and will continue to be attached to this report for 

information, and to monitor progress. 

 

3. CONCLUSION 

3.1 It is hoped, that in presenting the information to the Committee, and by having the report 

as a standing item on the agenda, it will allow Committee members to feed into the Work 

Programme on a regular basis, to ensure that it stays relevant and up to date. 

4. EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 

4.1 The Work Programme is a formal document laying out the work of the Committee in a 
clear, structured, and organised way, thus providing members with up to date and relevant 
information. 

 

5.    IMPLICATIONS 

5.1  SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP 

5.1.1  None Page 86



5.2  CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

5.2.1  None 

5.3  STAFFING 

5.3.1 None 

5.4  CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.4.1 Constitutional and Legal implications have been considered and in the opinion of the 

author, there are none arising from this report. However, the Work Programme should 

assist in providing a clear programme of work for the Governance and Audit Committee in 

line with the requirements laid out in the Council’s Constitution. 

5.5  DATA PROTECTION 

5.5.1  None 

5.6  FINANCIAL 

5.6.1 None 
 
5.7  RISK MANAGEMENT 

5.7.1 Risk Management implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author there 

are none. However, one of the roles of the Governance and Audit Committee is to monitor 

the effective development and operation of risk management and corporate governance in 

the Council, and the Work Programme should assist in keeping track of risk issues.  

5.8  STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 

5.8.1 None 

5.9  REPUTATION 

5.9.1 None 

5.10  CONTRACTS 

5.10.1 None 

5.11  CRIME AND DISORDER 

5.11.1 None 

5.12 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 

5.12.1 None 

5.13  HEALTH AND WELL BEING 

5.13.1 None 

5.14  CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.14.1 None 

6. ACRONYMS 

6.1  None Page 87



APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A 

 

APPENDIX B 

Work Programme for the Governance and Audit 

Committee 

 

Governance and Audit Committee training information 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 
in the production of this report 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Andrea Tait, Democratic Services Officer 

atait@sholland.gov.uk   

Signed off by: Samantha Knowles, Assistant Director - Finance 

sknowles@sholland.gov.uk  

Approved for publication: N/A 

 

Page 88

mailto:atait@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:sknowles@sholland.gov.uk


 
APPENDIX A 

 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS 2022/23 

 
 

Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency 
 

19 January 2023 Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision 
Policy Statement and Annual Investment 
Strategy 2023/24  

Section 151 Officer Mandatory requirement. 
To review Treasury Managmenet 
Strategy and approve Prudential 
Indicators. 
 

Annual 

 Q3 2022/23 Risk Report Corey Gooch Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory 
 

To each 
meeting 

 Impact of Financial Market Fluctations on 
the Council’s Financial position. 

Sean Howsam 
 

To update the Committee on the 
recent financial instability of the 
markets and effects on SHDC – short 
verbal update requested at the 17 
November 2022 Governance and 
Audit Committee meeting 
 

Ad hoc 

16 March 2023 Audit Plan 2022/23 External Audit 
(Ernst & Young) 
 

External Audit Plan – Mandatory 
Approval 
 

Annual 

 Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2022/23 

Internal Audit  To update Committee on progress of 
the plan. 
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 
 

To each 
meeting 

 Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plan 
2023/24 

Internal Audit 
 

Annual Internal Audit Workplan - 
Mandatory approval 
 

Annual 

 Follow up report on Internal Audit 
recommendations 

Internal Audit Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 
 

To each 
meeting 
 

 Financial Statements 2022/23 
Accounting Policies  
 
 

Section 151 Officer 
 

Not mandatory, but good practice. 
 
 

Annual 
 

P
age 89



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency 
 

 Q3 2022/23 Treasury Report   Section 151 Officer 
 

To comply with Treasury 
Management Strategy Reporting 
Requirements 
 

Quarterly 

 Housing Benefit Grant Claims 2021/22   External Audit 
(KPMG) 

External Audit Certification of Grant 
Claims – Mandatory Approval 
 
 

Annual 

 SHDC Annual Audit Letter 2021/22 
 

External Audit 
(Ernst & Young) 

Mandatory/Consultation requirement. 
To approve audit fees. 
 

Annual 

 Audit Results Report 2021/22 
 

External Audit 
(Ernst & Young) 

Mandatory report to those charged 
with Governance 

Annual 
 
 

 Approval of Annual Governance 
Statement, for inclusion with the 
Council’s published financial statements 
and approval of the audited 2021/22 
financial statements.  
  

Section 151 Officer Mandatory – approval required Annual 

 Governance and Audit Committee 
Annual Report – consideration of 
requirements for content TBC 
 

Section 151 
Officer/Democratic 
Services 
 
 

Not mandatory 
Good practice 

Annually-
TBC 

Meeting Date TBC 
required by end of 
May 2023 

Unaudited financial statements 2022/23 
including Narrative Report and Annual 
Governance Statement  

Section 151 Officer To approve financial statements prior 
to release to External Audit. 
Mandatory 

Annual 
 
 
 

To be scheduled for 
after May 2023 

Governance and Audit Committee Self 
Assessment 

Internal Audit For confirmation. 
Good practice. 

Annual 
 
 

 
The following item to be added to the Committee’s Work Programme on an ad hoc basis, where there is information to report: 
 

• March 2024 – Diarise to review the Counter Fraud, Corruption and Bribery Policy, and the Whistleblowing Policy (to be reviewed every 
three years, last reviewed March 2021 (Whistleblowing Policy) and 17 June 2021 (Counter Fraud, Corruption and Bribery Policy). 

 

P
age 90



APPENDIX B 

South Holland Governance & Audit Committee - Training Undertaken and Suggested Future Topics 
 

Title Format / Provider 
 

Date 

Introduction to Local Government Finance (as part of Induction) Chief Finance Officer May 2019 

Governance and Audit Committee training   Dems/Finance Officers May 2019 

Governance, Code of Conduct, Committee Structure (as part of the Induction) Monitoring Officer May 2019 

Unaudited Financial Statements Sam Knowles & Ellie Stacey 22 Oct 2020  

End of Year Accounts Sam Knowles & Ellie Stacey  18 October 2021  

Draft Accounts Training Sam Knowles & Ellie Stacey 8 September 2022 – 
postponed (slides shared 
with Committee). Training 
would be arranged after 
auditors had completed 
their field work.   

Pensions Section 151 Officer L.C.C. training 6 Dec 22  

 

Future Topics* Plans for Delivery How and When 
 

Finance Section 151 Officer All Member Briefing 

Statement of Accounts Section 151 Officer Detailed session 

Audit Section 151 Officer Detailed session 

Treasury Management Section 151 Officer Detailed session 

Governance Monitoring Officer All Member Briefing 

Ethics Monitoring Officer All Member Briefing 

P
age 91



Standards Monitoring Officer All Member Briefing 

Risk Management Monitoring Officer All Member Briefing 

Cyber Security Monitoring Officer All Member Briefing 

Regional Forum for Audit Committee Chairs – New Committee to be established 

by the end of March – North East Derbyshire will host for the East Midlands 

Jane Dethick – Lead Officer 

for the East Midlands 

Tuesday 22 March 1-2pm 

 

*could form part of the Induction programme following the 2023 election 

P
age 92


	Agenda
	3. Minutes
	4. Actions
	5. Q3 Risk Report 22/23
	q3 shdc strategic risk register 2223
	q3 partnership risk register 2223

	6. Draft Treasury Management Policy and Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy 2023/24
	220113 SHDC Appendix A Treasury Management Policy Statement 2023-24
	220113 SHDC Appendix B Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement and AIP 2023-24

	8. Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme
	Appendix A
	Appendix B


